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(Mr. P. G. B. Keuneman—Third
Colombo Central)

Mr. Speaker, when he opened the
Debate on this scandalous Bill, the
Hon. Minister of State tried to restrict
the discussion to the limited question
of the amount of money that this
Government had agreed to pay the
three foreign o0il companies as
compensation. The Hon. Minister of
State must now have realized
that what he said was in vain. He
must have realized that this side of
the House was not prepared to allow
him to get away with it so easily. He
must realize that hon. Members from
this side of the House have in great
detail and with considerable indig-
nation exposed, from many points of
view, the total sell-out of Ceylon’s
interests by this Government to the
imperialists.

It is not only in the matter of the
amount of compensation that the
betrayal of Ceylon’s interests by this
Government is to be seen. It has:
already been pointed out that the
Government has agreed to pay these
three foreign companies in cash,
mainly in foreign exchange, almost
twice as much as their nationalized
assets are worth, and almost three
times as much in terms of cash plus

tax exemptions. That is one aspect
ofothietimatter.
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But I should like to bring to your
attention that there are other issues
more fundamental in a way than the
amount of cash involved, to which
this House should pay attention, and
on the basis of which the Govern-
ment must be roundly condemned.
Some hon. Members have accused
this Government of yielding to the
political and economic blackmail of
the United States Government and
the British Government. In fact,
several speakers opposite tried to turn
this into a defence. The Hon. Minis-
ter of Nationalized Services and
Sports, who is now pursuing his
sporting career round the world, told
us in this House while taking part
in the Debate that there was nothing
else they could do. The hon. Parlia-
mentary Secretary to the Minister of
Industries, in a rare burst of can-
dour, told us that the foreign govern-
ments and the international mone-
tary organizations were twisting the
arms of the Government, and what
else could they do but yield.

No, Sir. I wish to say that this
Government has done something
worse than that. It has joined hands
with political and economic black-
mailers to play out the people of this
country. Yielding to blackmail is one
thing ; that only shows that you are
weak or a coward, to take the
side of blackmailers against the
people of your own country is an act
of political treachery.

The Government has gone further
in this matter. I intend to show that
in these agreements it has conceded
to the oil companies so-called prin-
ciples Ior which these o0il mono-
polists have been fighting stubbornly
all over the world wherever their
assets have been nationalized or
threatened. The Government has
accepted in these agreements prin-
ciples io which the o0il companies
attached nwore importance than to
the Rs. 100 million that they origin-
ally asked for as compensation. Thus,
the Government by these agreements
with the three oil companies has sold
out not onlv the interests of Ceylon

Blewidn @Y%) el
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and its people but it has also sold out
the interests of all the new emerging
nations who are struggling, one
way or another, to rid themselves
from the domination of the inter-
national oil cartels. That is the
gravamen of my charge.

I do not ir:tend to take up a lot of
time in repesting what other hon.
Members Lave said. I should like to
refer to this aspect of the matter
because it has not yet been brought
to the attention of the House. Hon.
Members opposite have acted as
traitors net only to their own country
but also to all developing nations.

From what we have read about its
Kurunegala sessions, there seems to
be some trouble in the United
National Party between old guards
and young guards. I do not know
what it is. The Prime Minister even
made a speech warning against “ old
guardism.” I am not interested in
domestic problems of theirs. But
may I just mention this ?

ad of. ¢l LRI (&Hes @OR
80 gy s SE¥mdmEm am
ded v »Oun B8Ac e@Be'sy @mEE
e@sY ) o w®)

(Qserrey Cop. oyi. i sar—@rreris
IYEFFTHLD TS Y FFr gD LT
sriiy Qeofldflessrs oyeinésrgip urrmen
e pé& @il sl )

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene—Minister
of State and Parliamentary Secretary to

the Prime Minister and Minister of
Defence and External Affairs)

Freedom of speech.

G DOBY Scan,

(8. Qaeriner)
(Mr. Keuneman)

Freedom of the wild ass.

This Government gets a lot of sup-
port from some Ceylonese capitalists.
Some of the Ceylonese capitalists
have worked heart and soul for the
Government and its major party, the
United National Party.—[Interrup-
tion]. No capitalists worked for me.
I want to say that, when it comes to


http://www.noolahamfoundation.org/
http://www.noolaham.org/wiki/index.php/%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%81%E0%AE%A4%E0%AE%B1%E0%AF%8D_%E0%AE%AA%E0%AE%95%E0%AF%8D%E0%AE%95%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%8D
http://aavanaham.org/

1331
Gt ABY enn@ 9 E (Sed G BT & @)
sE coi®an

dealing with the foreign oil com-
panies, this Government, led by the

Minister of State, tumbles over itself .

to give them prompt and vast com-
pensation. But when it comes to
Ceylonese whose businesses were
nationalized, they do not show the
same concern, even though the Cey-
lonese capitalists supported them.

I remember that when the former
Government nationalized Ceylonese
interests in the Bank of Ceylon—even
the bus companies—how these
Gentlemen opposite, when they were
on this side of the House, protested,
“What about the Ceylonese capita-
lists who have been nationalized "—
the poor bus mudalalis like the hon.
Member for Dehiwala-Mt. Lavinia
(Mr. S. de S. Jayasinghe) who has
just come in ? They all were having
a very bad time, according to the
Members Opposite—[Interruption].
It reminded me, when I saw him,
that he was such a gentleman in dis-
tress. All of them used to speak in
that way. Still they have not
bothered to come round to paying
compensation to their domestic
capitalist friends, but when it comes
to their foreign friends and support-
ers, they fall over each other ; they
break the law in order to compensate
them.

If my hon. Friend, the Minister of
State, thinks that we are going to be
side-tracked and give our consent to
this Bill which seeks to give cover-
ing sanction to a breach of the law
by the Government and its collective
contempt of the House, he is very
much mistaken.

Ceylon is a small country. We
have had to fight a difficult, arduous
and complicated struggle against the
three foreign oil companies which
operated in Ceylon. FEach of these
companies is part of international
cartels that are richer and more
powerful than the Government of
Ceylon itself. I have with me an
authoritative book on the subject

1065 @femddd 7
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written by Mr. Harvey O’Connor—
“The World Crisis in Oil ”. Inciden-
tally, Mr. O’Connor refers to Ceylon
also.

In this book, in the very first page,
Mr. O’Connor tells us what were the
assets and incomes of all these oil
companies in the year 1960—that is
just before we began the process of
nationalization. I am not going to
read the whole lot. I will just
mention a few facts from it.

In 1960 the assets of Standard Oil-
Esso were 10,090 million U. S. dollars.
Its net income after taxation all over
the world for that year was 684 mil-
lion U. S. dollars. Then we will take
the Shell Company, the second
biggest in the world, although it is
the biggest in Ceylon. Its assets in
1960 were 8,874 million U. S. dollars.
Its net income for the year 1960 was
497 million U. S. dollars. The third
company is Caltex, part of Socony-
Mobil. Its assets in 1960 were 3,455
million dollars and its net income for
the year 1960 was 183 million dollars.
This Government would be very
glad if even 1/10th of that income
was the national revenue of Ceylon.

We are a small country and we
started a fight against these giants.
It is a credit to the hon. Leader of
the Opposition that it was when she
was Prime Minister, the Govern-
ment that she led -courageously
began the struggle. Now we have
come to a new stage in this fight, a
stage at which the oil companies
have gained a temporary victory
and Ceylon has suffered a temporary
defeat due to this U. N. P.-F. P. hath
hawula Government.

I do not want to range over the
whole question of the activities—
may I say the nefarious activities 2—
of these oil companies in Ceylon.
More than one hon. Member hag
spoken very eloquently about them.
There are only three oil companies
two American and one British. Ai,;
the highest point, their investment
in Ceylon was Rs. 73 million, In
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1961 when we began the process of
nationalization the wvalue of their
assets was only Rs. 33 million. -

How much more has been spent by
earlier Governments of Ceylon to
keep these oil companies going?
When I spoke on the original Bill I
gave facts and figures. They are in
Hansarp and I do not want to repeat
them. We built an oil jetty at
Government expense which was
used only by their tankers. The
Government and the people of
Ceylon paid for it. We installed the
pipe line to Kolonnawa. It was
paid for by previous Governments
and the people of Ceylon and the oil
companies paid us the princely sum
of 2 cents a gallon for the privilege
of using this pipeline. They made
huge money with such a small
investment.

I agree with the hon. Member for
Habaraduwa (Mr. Prins Gunase-
kera) that nobody, not even the
Inland Revenue Department, knew
the real profits of these oil compa-
nies from their operations in Ceylon.
But, today, we can have some indi-
cation of how much they made out
of us. We have the Annual Report
of the Ceylon Petroleum Corpora-
tion for the year 1964. This was the
year in which the entire internal
distribution of o0il products was
taken over by the corporation, and
in this year, that is to say 1964, the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation was
able to make a profit of Rs. 304
million, according to its own report.
Mind you, Sir, we should remember
that this profit of Rs. 30.4 million
was secured when the Ceylon Petro-
leum Corporation was handling only
60 per cent. of the oil sales in Ceylon,
because 40 per cent. is still in the
hands of the oil companies in the
form of bunkering and supplying
aviation fuel. With only 60 per
cent. of the total business in its
hands, the Ceylon Petroleum Cor-
poration made a profit of Rs. 30.4
million in one year. So, we can
have some idea of how much the
companies were making as profit.
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Secondly, there is another aspect
of the matter. The prices of oil
imported and supplied to the
consumer by the corporation are
known to us. The prices were re-
duced in the case of kerosene and
certain other products. In the case
of supplies from the companies
nobody knew how their so-called
posted prices were made up.
Nobody knew what their hidden
and secret profits were, because
nobody in Ceylon knew anything
about what happened until the oil
arrived in the Colombo Harbour. In
spite of all that, the Ceylon Petro-
leum Corporation, in the one year in
which it handled only 60 per cent.
of the distribution of oil products,
made Rs. 30.4 million as profit. If
that is the case, then we can say
these oil companies were making as
much as or more than the total
value of their assets every year by
way of profit. If you take their
hidden profits into consideration,
then every year they were making
practically the total value of their
assets.

I do not want to go into the
question whether these people
should be given compensation at all.
I always believe that compensation
is a matter of tactics rather than a
matter of principle. But our party
too accepted the fact that compen-
sation, according to the 1961 law,
should be given.

I must say that I am totally in
agreement, from the political and
theoretical point of view, with the
idea expressed by the hon. Member
for Habaraduwa—that is, if there is
one set of persons who do not
deserve the compensation, it is the
oil companies. In point of fact,
they should compensate Ceylon for
the wrongs they have done us rather
than having us compensate them.
For the sake of unanimity, for the
sake of getting the -corporation
started—because this amounted to
the first major break through in the
struggle against foreign vested in-
terests—we accepted the principle of
compensation in the 1961 Act which
we thought laid down at least the
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most equitable way of paying com-
pensation. But at that time our
party, in supporting the Bill—
despite the fact that at that time
only part of the internal distribution
of oil was handled by the Corpora-
tion—raised the gquestion that we
will have to face as a country and
as a people a long and bitter
struggle from these oil companies.

I do not usually enjoy reading my
own speeches, but perhaps you will
forgive me if I read a sentence or
two from what I said in my speech
on the 1961 Bill on behalf of the
Communist Party, because it sets out
the warning we gave on that occasion
and also sets out in a summarized
form our assessment of the forces
against whom we were fighting, an
assessment which has been fully
confirmed by the facts. This is what
I said at column 4394 :

« We support this Bill because we want
to see that the benefits from economic
activities in this country accrue to the
people of Ceylon and not to foreign im-
perialist monopolies. We all know that
it is not an easy matter to challenge the
power of the oil cartels. These oil mono-
polists have made and unmade govern-
ments in different parts of the world.
They have provoked wars and financed
counter-revolutions. They have kept the
press and politicians on their payroll.
They have fought openly and insidiously
against every attempt to limit their power
or their profits. We saw how they over-
threw Mossadeq and his Government in
Iran. We have seen how they make and
unmake Governments in Latin America.
We have experienced the stink of oil
politics in the imperialist intrigues in the
Middle East and today we are seeing it
in the ecriminal American invasion of
Cuba. The United States of America
launched a criminal attack on the inde-
pendence and integrity of Cuba because
the Cuban Government under Castro de-
cided to take over the American oil com-
panies in that country. It is no secret
that the American o0il companies, espe-
cially the Caltex Company, openly boast-
ed of the tens of thousands of dollars they
have paid to counter-revolutionary ele-
ments who are now, under American
direction, carrying out an invasion of
Cuba to upset and overthrow that Govern-
ment, to destroy the integrity of the
Cuban State and the independence of its
people.
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These are the type of people we are
dealing with. We are not dealing with
ordinary businessmen, We are not deal-
ing with petty swindlers. We are deal-
ing with financial empires more powerful
than the Government of this country and
the Governments of many other countries.
Many a sordid chapter in the criminal
history of imperialism has been written

in oil—in profits for the oil monopolists
and in blood and death for the common
people. "—[OFFIcIAL REPORT, 21st Septem-
ber, 1961 ; Vol. 42, c. 4394.]

ofe’. ad. Restd DT MO e,
(6co®ca)

(Blm. eril. Qyir. L_wew LiehTL T BrilsEs—
@;ﬁn‘&-@u}

(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike—Dompe)

Blood, oil, tears and sweat.

ey Do
(IE’D.J). Gl er Lo )
(Mr. Keuneman)

On that occasion, on behalf of the
Communist Party, we warned about
the seriousness of this matter. We
warned that there will be a conti-
nuous attempt to overthrow the
Government that introduced the
Bill, to sabotage the activities of the
corporation in one way or another,
and to return to power, directly or
indirectly.

It is only a question of the amount
of money involved. It is true that
our experience in the struggle
against the oil companies and their
supporters has not been a bloody
one.

ofes’. qd. Qawed NN B,
(Slgp. eril. Dy, L_LiGh LIS [0 BTII&S )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Oily business !

eRNOBY e,

(J,@.Qﬁ. Gz e Loer )

(Mr. Keuneman)

A lot of oily business, a lot of
lubrication involved. But our ex-
perience has been as drastic as that
of the other countries, We remem-
ber it very well. From the word
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“go”, when the Hon. T. B. Ilanga-
ratne—all honour to him for it; he
is not in the House, but let us pay
a tribute to him for introducing that
Bill—when the Hon. T. B, Ilangaratne
tabled on the Floor of the House the
Petroleum Corporation Bill of 1961,
it was then that the war against
Ceylon and its people started on
behalf of the oil companies. We had
1o fight it all along the line. We had
to meet the oil lobby, as referred to
by my Friend, the hon. Member for
Habaraduwa (Mr. Prins Gunase-
kera). We had to meet a hostile
press. The United National Party
was also caught short in this fight.
They fought it tooth and nail until
it came to the Floor of this House.
And because they had suddenly
decided to change their political tac-
tics, they got up and said : Well, we
also support it—having opposed it
tooth and mnail in the municipal
council ten days earlier, having got
the support of the oil companies in
the 1960 elections, having had Mr.
Dudley Senanayake’s photograph put
up by every single petrol station in
the country!

Sir, the first speaker for the
U.N.P. in that Debate in 1961 was
the hon. Member for Homagama. He
was new to the House, and therefore
he did not understand the tactics of
the U.N.P. He was not such a tricky,
able, political manoeuvrer as the
Hon. Minister of State who led the
fight on that occasion—led the
retreat, shall I say, on that occasion.
Mr. Gamani Jayasuriya reflected the
real feelings of the UN.P. and also
reflected his dilemma in the very
first opening speech. This is what he
said:

“ . . . We could easily sabotage this
Bill, but we do not want to do it at this
stage because the finances of the country
are in a very bad condition and we can-

not allow our finances to be washed away
and lost.”

Then:

““ (THE HON. F. R, DIAS BANDARANAIKE :
Are you going to sabotage this at some
other stage?

Hewldn Yy eHACw
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(MR. JAYASURIYA) .
We cannot do that—"

Perhaps, he did not know the capa-
city of the Hon. Minister of State—

“ (THE HON. F. R. DIAS BANDARANAIKE) :

You said you were not going to sabo-
tage it at this stage.

(MR. JAYASURIYA) :

Bepe;use our finances
concdition.

are in a bad

(THE HON. F. R. DIAS BANDARANAIKE) :

Are you going to sabotage it at some
later stage ?

(MR. JAYASURIYA) :
We will consider it at that time!?”

[OrriciAL ReporT, 21st April 1961 ; Vol.
42, c. 4478.]

efe’. @d. Aot dedandsnnn .
(B eris. . Lwen LT Trpriss)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

It has now happened.

DBV BY Dcan.

(8. Qserwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

The time has come.

ofed. end. Rww’ g dmnem .
(Bm. eril. . Lwew LT TTETLSES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

It has come to pass.

SN BY Do

(8. Qaerwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

The Hon. Minister of State was
embarrassed by this frankness of this
young Member. At that time he got
up and said: “He is a young Mem-
ber ; he has not understood the
politics of this.” No, Sir. He under-
stood the real meaning of what the
UN.P. was after, and he said it in
his frank and open way.

Well, the wheel has gone the full
circle, and that stage has come. Hon,
Members opposite who beat a tactical
retreat in 1961 saying that they
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supported the Bill and did not want
to sabotage it at that stage are back
in power and able to sabotage it
now.

That is the real situation. Now
their real intentions are manifest.
Now we know what was going on
behind all those tactics.

In the Budget Debate I quoted the
speech of the Hon. Minister of State
—his advice to the Coalition Govern-
ment of the day during the Debate
on the Budget of the hon. Member
for Yatiyantota. He told us: You
settle this question with the oil com-
panies, and America will give you all
the aid you want. You will have no
Budget deficit at all. We now know
that he is the villain of the piece, the
chief author of the agreement, the
man who put the whole thing
through. The Minister of National-
ized Services divested himself of all
responsibility. He said; No, it is the
Minister of State who did it. I will
show later that some of his theories
are going wrong.

You would recall that the nationa-
lization of the internal distribution of
oil went through three distinct stages,
and at every stage we had a big fight
with the oil companies, the oil lobbies
and their supporters in and outside
this House. The first stage was the
setting up of the Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation by the Act of 1961. That
was not a total nationalization of the
internal distribution of oil. Only 41
per cent of the distribution of oil was
taken into the hands of the Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation at that time.
Only certain assets—not all the assets
—of the oil companies were taken
over. The idea the Government had
at that time—an idea against which
I warned them and told them that it
was not possible to carry on in com-
petition with the oil companies and
that there must be a complete take-
rover—was to start a national corpora-
tion and compete with the oil com-
panies. That was the first stage. But
at that stage also there,was, this
tremendous opposition. There cwere
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all these stories about the Govern-
ment bringing Russian ocil to this
country. We were told that motor
cars cannot run on Russian oil. All
motor cars including the motor car of
the Hon. Minister of State are now
running on Russian oil, and they are
running very well.

ofes. qd. Rawed A NWSINGD D,
(Bas. eris. QY. Lweh LSTLTTBTLES )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)
Running well without Shell !

eWMBOBY D

(8. Qserwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

They are all running very well
without Shell. We are working our
factories on diesel oil from the Soviet
Union, from Rumania, from tha
U. A. R.; and even from the United
States we are getting a small quantity
of lubricants.

Yes, there was a big fight on that
occasion, a fight which is relevant to
this question of compensation. This
was the period in which the oil com-
panies carried on a campaign against
the Government of Ceylon not only
domestically but abroad, and it cul-
minated in their getting the Govern-
ment of the United States of America
arbitrarily to cut off its so-called aid
to Ceylon on the grounds that we
were not taking effective steps to give
prompt compensation. I will deal with
that in a moment.

The second stage was when the
Government, after the United States
had cut off aid, took the decision to
introduce a c.i.f. ceiling price for the
import of oil. That was a step further,
but it was not one that lasted long
because the oil companies were able
to retaliate. And, finally in 1963, it
became necessary to take the logical
step of vesting the entire internal dis-
tribution of oil products in the Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation.

_ That was the major break through
in the struggle for economic indepen-
dence. It was one of the most im-
Eortant steps taken by the last
Government in  challenging the
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foreign vested interests in ‘ghls coun-
try, in making even a dent into their
monopolyt That is why it was So
enthusiastically supported by all the
Ceylonese people who valued pro-
gress and economic independence.
That is why a small country like
Ceylon got such a high reputation in
the world as being able to stand up to
these international monopolists and
not to give in to their threats, black-
mail and arm-twisting. The Govern-
ment of the hon. Leader of the Oppo-
sition, Mrs. Sirimavo R. D. Bandara-
naike, at that time won a very great
prestige for standing up for the natio-
nal interests of Ceylon, a prestige not
only among the people of this country
but also abroad, because the national
self-respect and the national integrity
of Ceylon was maintained. The oil
companies were told : We may be a
small people, we may be weak, we
may be poor, but our honour and our
country are not for sale, not to be
bartered. If you want to deal with us
deal with us properly, do not try and
deal with us with a gun on the table.
The respect this country got the re-
putation this couniry got, was
frittered away, by this Government
which is so lacking in concern for the
national self-respect of Ceylon.

At every stage, we had to face
threats, economic boycott and politi-
cal blackmail. You will recall that
the oil companies even put pressure
on the Government of Iran to stop
buying tea from Ceylon. They took
steps to use their influence among the
Middle-Eastern = Governments to
buckle our tea market in the Middle-
Kast in retaliation for this assertion
of our economic independence in
taking over the distribution of oil
products from the three monopoly
companies. The Government had a
choice at that time either to yield to
blackmail or stand firm, and they
stood firm. It adds to their credit.

Even now the oil companies have
very little to complain about. Still 40
per cent. of the total sales of petro-
leum products is in their hands.
400,000 tons of oil are being sold by
them as bunkering fuel for a year

BewiBm 575 @edCw
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from the sea and airports of Ceylon.
They are making undisclosed and
untaxed profits on them. I do not
know how much they make. All T can
say is they make a tremendous sum.

The Petroleum Corporation, under
the last Government, entered into
competition even in this bunkering
trade. About 43 per cent. of the
bunkering trade is now confrolled by
the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation,
mostly, the supply to ships from the
socialist countries and other {free
emerging states. On this per cent.
they made Rs. 4.7 million profit last
year on the trade of bunkering only.
On those figures alone those compa-
nies must be making Rs. 35 to 40
million a year as profit on bunkering.

I am aware that it has been held by
the Privy Council that you cannot
levy a tax on bunkering. But there is
nothing to prevent us changing our
Customs Ordinance. If we change the
Customs Ordinance and make that
also as an article that is dutiable,
capable of leving a tax, there is then
a very considerable source of revenue
to us. But these companies have
taken shield under a legal decision
and say, “Well, we do not accept
your right to tax us, we are merely
holding the trade in bunkering.”

I think, the hon. Member for Nallur
(Dr. Naganathan) who made a very
big speech on this matter is
becoming one of the chief spokes-
men of vested interest in this
House. Yesterday he made a speech
in this House on behalf of the estate
employees. The day before yesterday
he made a speech on behalf of the
petroleum companies. I wish it were
possible for you to find a still more
eloquent and effective spokesman like
the hon. Appointed Member (Mr.
Singleton-Salmon). If I may say so
with all due respect, the hon.
Appointed Member (Mr. Jonklaas)
made a very able advocate’s speech
putting forward the view of the oil
companies. May I take this opportu-
nity to congratulate the hon. Member
on his advocacy, if not on the contents
of his speech ? That is the least we
could expect from a distinguished
Queen’s Counsel.
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The hon. Member for Nallur said
that this was very much like some-
body who comes and puts an article
in bond and then takes it away. That
is what he said.

ofed. @l Rwed deTndrnwzy D,
(8. orl. gyi- L weh LS rrpruss)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Not imported.

SWMBVBY Do

( Ba5. Qsarinsr)
(Mr. Keuneman)

It is not imported. The point is the
sale is taking place in Ceylon. It is
not outside the three mile limit, but
it is done within our territorial
waters, and within our territory. The
sale of oil is taking place within our
territory. It is done in our harbours,
in our airfields, and if we amend our
Customs regulations, as we should, we
can levy a tax on it. All these installa-
- tions are run at our expense, and
are operated by Ceylonese labour.
This is not something like a passenger
or tourist who comes here for a day,
who does not want to take his
luggage to the hotel, but who keeps
it in bond and takes it away. It is
nothing of that sort. These are com-
mercial transactions carried on
where profits are made without one
penny, one cent, being given by way
of taxes to the Government of this
country.

As you are aware, the fight of the
oil companies and their supporters
had gone on at several levels ; there
was political and economic blackmail
of the country, there were all the
activities of the Ilubricated oil
lobby and there were the political
manoeuvres to overthrow  the
Government and to kick out Mr.
Ilangaratne from the Government. In
addition to {that, a very stubborn
fight was put up by the oil companies
to assert certain set principles in
conflict which they have to face in-
creasingly in the world as ever new
emergent nations take action against
their monopolies. Sir, to us Rs. 55
million is a big sum of money, but
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to the oil companies it is nothing, to
them it is like small change. I am
sure, they will give the whole of the
Rs. 100 million, it is about three years
profits, to get those principles estab-
lished. What this Government has
conceded in principle is worth much
more than the Rs. 100 million which
they asked for. They have spent
more than this amount to overthrow
Moosadeq in Iran and to make
themselves secure in Latin America,
and they will spend more in breaking
Governments in Ceylon. [Interrup-
tion]. I cannot say about that, but
I would like to say this. I am told
that they spent. The Treasurer of the
U. N. P., Mr. Mashoor, will be able to
say, I do not know. What I want to
say is that the oil companies fought
such a stubborn battle against the
past Government and against the Bill
not merely because they were in-
terested in defending their vested in-
tests here but because they felt that
they had a duty cast upon them to
wreck the Oil Bill to establish their
principles, their laws, so that when
this matter came up again in another
part of the world Ceylon would not
be held up as a precedent under their
nose. That is what they were worried
abouf. I say that much more was at
stake than this Rs. 100 million that
they originally claimed or the Rs. 55
million or the Rs. 83 million which
the Government has, in fact given.
Sir, it is not cash that was important
to them, although cash was import-
ant, but principles, principles of high
morality, principles by which they
could justify their domination
throughout the world.

You will reeall, Sir, that in Febru-
ary 1963 the United States of America
cut off the so-called aid to Ceylon on
the alleged ground that Ceylon was
not taking meaningful steps in regard
to the payment of compensation to
the oil companies. The United States
Government, acting in the interests
of the oil companies, took the sten
of cutting off aid to Ceylon under the
so-called Hickenlooper Amendment.
Now, this Government is asking this
House by this Bill to endorse the
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Hickenlooper Amendment. They want
to make the Hickenlooper Amend-
ment part of the law of Ceylon.

Under the Hickenlooper Amend-
ment, the United States of America
on behalf of the oil companies re-
iterated the famous 19th century
principle—which the Hon. Minister
of Industries called the puskapu 19th
century principle—that compen-
sation for nationalized properties by
. aliens should be ‘“prompt, adequate
{ and effective”. This is the famous
yardstick : compensation must be
prompt, compensation must be ade-
quate, and compensation must be
1 effective. And the Government of
Myrs. Sirimavo Bandaranaike was
accused of being neither prompt, nor
adequate, nor effective in paying
compensation for the nationalized
assets of the oil companies.

It is true that the cufting off of
American aid was an attempt to
attach political conditions to such aid,
it was an attempt at economic black-
mail, of twisting the arm of the
Government and getting them to
agree to the exorbitant demands of
the oil companies. But is also out-
raged even the established interpre-
tations given to this 19th century
puskapu doctrine of prompt, ade-
quate and effective compensation.

Incidentally, I must say, this was
an imperialist doctrine by imperia-
list countries, though it is supposed
to be a big doctrine of international
law. You must bear with me for a
moment if T deal with some of the
elements of this doctrine because
these are the questions involved in
this campaign. Let us examine each
of these elements. Let us first take
the element of promptness.

How lacking in promptness was
the Government of Ceylon in the
matter of compensation ? How did
the position here compare with what
the oil companies had agreed to else-
where ? You will then see the extent
to which these principles which are
supposed to be international law have
been stretched in an attempt at poli-
tical and economic blackmail.

Bewldm @578 @eFACw
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The first country that took steps to
expropriate the oil companies was
Mexico, and the very same principle
for which the oil companies fought
such a stubborn battle here became
part of the battle against the Mexican
Government. You have gone and
yielded in the same way in this
their second real test. I do not want
to go through the whole question of
the Mexican expropriation of the oil
companies.

A1 BN BN

(L priisn ,gywri’&e?r)

(Mr. Speaker)

I think the hon. Member will finish
by a quarter to four ?

eHOBY e

(B85 Qaarwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

No, Sir. We will finish altogether
in time.

Ofed. @d. e ATTNINGD .
(B. erth. gyi. Lwew LML TTprasSs)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

We will finish the Debate in time.

D1 BN GRS
(FLTErUST oeul 6T )
(Mr. Speaker)

I think you will have to finish by
5 o’clock for the Hon. Minister of
State to start his reply.

ofe. @8 Vaed DeTNdsnw Sosn.
(BB ere). Q. L Wew LIGHTLTTFTUSES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

By six o’clock.

0. 8. ¢ cwBm 882&Am» dw.
(85)D5Y 6nd)

(8s. erib. §. 1y Qerdevr Sflan ser—
1 gyeurmQasrent_ )

(Mr. M. P. de Zoysa Siriwardena—
Minuwangoda)

I think the Government was
allowed only two hours.

ofed. gl Ve DeTDdsNei Scan.
(Bos. ers. Y. L wew LT rrpruss)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

May I point out that at the party

leaders’ meeting we came to a certain
agreement ?
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(Eurprwsast 2 QN 6T )

(Mr. Speaker)

There is one hour left for the
Government. The Opposition will
have to finish by 6 o’clock. The Hon.
Minister of State will commence his
reply at 6 o’clock, and I shall put the
Question at 7 o’clock.

SO BY o,

(Bm. Qaarwer)
{(Mr. Keuneman)

I shall only deal with the question
of the Mexican decree in relation to
the oil issue in Ceylon. The law—or
decree, as they called it—in Mexico,
expropriating the oil business, was
issued on 18th March 1938. The first
attempt to do anything about it, that
is to say, to do something concrete
about compensation, came four years
later, on 17th April 1942, when a
mixed commission of experts was
appointed to value the expropriated
properties. It was only nine years
later, on 30th September 1947, that
an agreement on compensation was
reached. In the case of the British
and the Dutch o0il properties in
Mexico, a settlement was reached for
payment which would finish eight
years after expropriation, that is, in
February 1946. In the case of the
other oil companies—the American
oil companies—it was practically the
same position. That was the position
in regard to Mexico. There was a
delay of eight to nine years.

What happened in Ceylon ? How
“unprompt ” was the Government of
Ceylon in promptness ? Hon. Mem-
bers opposite were blaming the
Government, saying that it was not
prompt. The facts are known. The
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation Act
became law on 29th May 1961. The
corporation was set up in June 1961,
It commenced business in April 1962.
The U. S. A. cut off its aid in
February 1963. In other words, the
U. S. A, at the instigation of the oil
companies, cut off aid less than one
year—a matter of months—after the
corporation had begun biisiness and
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less than two years after the law was
passed. Nine years in Mexico, less
than two years here, and we are
supposed to be “unprompt ” !

What happened ? Faced with ihe
second act of total expropriation—at
that time only partial—of their pro-
perty, they were fighting for the
principle that compensation must be
paid not only how they wanted but
when they wanted. What they could
not achieve in their fight with Mexico,
they tried to achieve in Ceylon. And
they achieved it, thanks to this
Government.

The other elements of this doetrine
—adequate and effective compensa-
tion—did not arise at that time
because the proceedings for getting
the compensation assessed had not
started at the time the U. S. A. cut
off its aid. But you will recall, Sir,
that subsequently, in all their nego-
tiations, in all their talks with the
Government, in all their public and
private attitudes, the oil companies
fought hard for the acceptance of two
principles which they considered
vital to them. The first point that we
noticed was this: it was the reluct-
ance of the oil companies to submit
themselves to Ceylon law and the
adjudication of a compensation
tribunal set up under the law of
Ceylon. The oil companies never like
to regard themselves as another
business firm subject to the laws of
the country in which they operate.
They regard themselves as a super-
government above the laws of auny
Government and open only to a
Governmental level dealing. It is a
principle that you are now conceding.

The Petroleum Corporation Report
of 1364, at page 14, gives a short
account of the attitude of the oil

companies on this matter., This is
what it says :

“The Companies, however, did not dis-
close their basis at any stage but during
the proceedings they questioned the jurig-
diction of the Tribunal to hear and deter.
mine this matter. They contended that
the,Eribunal was wrongly constituted
Theofzovernment undertook to honouy
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any award made by the Tribunal not-
withstanding this alleged lack of juris-
diction. The Companies, however, per-
sisted in their objections but were over-
ruled by the Tribunal. The objection was
taken again before the second panel of
the Tripunal but with the same result.
The Companies thereafter filed papers in
the Supreme Court and moved for Writ
of Quo Warranto and Certiorari on the
Tribunal. The matter awaits determina-
tion by a Full Bench while the sittings
of the Tribunal stand suspended until
a decision is known. ”

The hon. Appointed Member (Mr.
Jonklaas) also gave a detailed
account from the other point ef view
but what he said was substantially
the same, that the companies were
determined not to submit them-
selves to this law, not to submit
themselves to an adjudication of the
tribunal which was set up by law
which was unanimously passed by
the House, because, if they did, all
over the world they would have to
submit themselves to the same sort
of position.

Secondly, the oil companies fought
tooth and nail for what they called
the principle of fair market value as
the basis for compensation. That is
also another matter brought out by
the speech of the hon. Appointed
Member (Mr. Jonklaas). He
touched on that point. That was their
fight ; that was their objection. They
said that the Bill, which we had
passed unanimously in 1961, with the
United National Party also support-
ing it, as a result of its last minute
change of tactics, denied the concept
of fair market value. Of course, it
did. That was the merit of the Bill.
It set out a very just form of com-
pensation. It decided that the form
of compensation will be determinec
by the people in whose country the
oil companies have been making the
money and not by them or their
lawyers or the international
governments backing them.

They were totally opposed to all
the criteria of value set out in the
Act of 1961. You will remember
all these criteria that were set out
in such detail in the 1961 Act were
designed to cut out concepts like

@8 @edACw
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goodwill, loss of future profits and
211 these other intangibles in the
concept of the fair market value, and
it laig down very clearly the basis
on which the compensation should
be determined. Section 47, you will
recall, sets out the concept of the
actual price—actual price paid for
the property at the point of purchase
plus a reasonable value for any
~dditions and improvements.  Where
the purchase price was not ascer-
tainable, the compensation was to be
based on the price the property
would have fetched if it had been
sold in the open market on the day
it was vested in the Corporation.
Sections 47, 48 and 49 also continue
to develop the concept of the actual
price as against fair market value
as the basis for compensation. The
oil companies fought against this in
Mexico too. In Mexico they even
went to court on the ground that
they should be compensated for loss
of profits and the courts held against
them. But in each of these cases
they are fighting for this concept of
fair market value. In other words.
they want to determine and dictate
what should be the amount of com-
pensation and the principles on
which the compensation should be
assessed. If they had agreed and
given in to this principle here they
would have had to accept it in every
other country of the world.

Look at the agreement which this
U. N. P. headed by the Hon. Minister
of State in this matter has signed
with the oil companies. I draw your
attention to the fact that in each
one of these agreements the principle
of fair market value is specifically
conceded by the Government. That
is part of the surrender. That is
the clause that will be used against
every other emerging country that
will have the courage to fight these
monopolies. Our Government has
accepted this principle, the one
principle for which they fought
tooth and nail, the principle which
they valued far more than this
difference between Rs. 55 million
and Rs. 100 million or Rs. 85 million
and Rs. 100 million that they
originally asked for.
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Take the agreement. This is how
the preamble reads:

“AND WHEREAS as a result of such
negotiations the Government Aand the
Shell Company have agreed that in de-
termining the appropriate compensation
due the principle of fair market value
be recognised as applying to the overall
settlement. ”

You will find the very same
conditions in the agreement with
Esso and Caltex too.

In other words, the two major
premises for which they were
fighting—their right not to subor-
dinate themselves to Ceylon laws
and their right to be compensated on
their own terms of fair market
value—have been conceded in these
agreements by the Government.

coRemubes V. T Bm@Rem
(gmledes)

(Q_r&Li erew. ar. Gﬁé;ﬂfm@xﬁrr@p—cg/é@
peven )

(Dr. 8. A. Wickremasinghe—Akuressa)
Shame !

ONMDBY Dea.

(Ep. Qsarier)

(Mr. Keuneman)

In other words, this is a complete
surrender. You have hauled the
flag of the Petroleum Corporation
down and thrown up the flag of the
oil companies. It is not only a
betrayal of this country alone but a
betrayal of all the emerging
countries that are fighting these oil
monopolies.

This question is disguised by the
device of a lump sum payment.
This lump sum payment is the same
device that these companies used in
Mexico. They want to assert a
premise. They want to keep them-
selves open for manoeuvring so as to
be able to meet all possibilities.
Here we have the example, an
apparently unchallenged fact, where
the written down assets of the com-
panies were only Rs. 33 million. The
Government has given a lump sum of
Rs. 55 million plus interest of Rs. 5
million—[Interruption]. You will
give them Rs. 58 million.
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oS od. ¢mb. Swuddm
(Qsorren Ceg. oyi. spweur gar)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)
No interest.

M NVsY @con.
(8. Qseriwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

You are going to pay interest for
the future.—[Interruption]. It is a
couple of millions more or Iless.
Supposing you gave Rs. 55 million,
it comes to Rs. 57 or Rs. 58 million.

ad & ¢l Lwu2iAm
(Osprres Geg. . sguieui ser)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

Rs. 55 million and interest in full
payment.

GO BY s,

( '5-‘;@ Q@ er Lo )
(Mr. Keuneman)

It will come to about Rs. 57
million. Let us——

@& o8, . SwDEAD
(Qagrres Cep. oyr. eueui zar)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)
Fair enough !

eaOBY .
(8. Qseriner)
(Mr. Keuneman)

It is a small matter of accounting.

I am concerned with a major
argument.
By this device of lump sum

payment the companies are free to
say that all sorts of concepts have
entered into this payment—goodwill,
loss of profits and any other intan-
gibles that they assert have entered
on the basis of fair market value.
I ask the Minister of State, “ Please
tell us all the elements that have
ertberedointo this Rs. 55 million.
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8 cuEom Swln @, (& ®
an 896 oRew wEEe@n o w@)

(B = A HE— 55
Qg e, s—pRw e GDF ST LTTTEh
werps srilugsia)

(Mr. D. Shelton Jayasinghe—Parlia-

mentary Secretary to the Minister of
Industries and Fisheries)

Market value.

GQagan p per

OBy .

(Bl Qserivear )

(Mr. Keuneman)

Is it market value alone ?

sBEOsY Swla
(B Qopepper geifiian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
Yes:

SOy Ow.

(Bm. Qaariar)

{Mr. Keuneman)

Fair market value. ?

eu@osY Ll dw
(B@. Qapoppsir squAEign)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
Yes.

e »OBY .

(Bm. Qaerwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

Did the concept of goodwill come
into it ?

cuEOsY Lwi.dy Owi

(B 5. Capsdr ppsir gauGiiaw)
~ (Mr. Shelton J ayasinghe)

Nothing of the sort!

e®®sY Sch.

(8. Qaerier)

(Mr. Keuneman)

Sir, I would like some responsible

rson to answer me. This is the
trouble with the Government : when
you ask them a serious question the
responsible people keep quiet and the
irresponsible people shout.

Bewldm @58 DeHACw
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DS 5N BN

(FLur prsn el &oir)

(Mr. Speaker)

The Hon. Minister of State will

reply.

o5 @

(B Qaarioar)

(Mr. Keuneman)

I am inviting him, through you, Mr.
Speaker, to answer my question when
he replies.

wd Oy RDéowny

(Osorrer YmsHsal eWHair)

(An hon. Member)

The hon. Member said the hon. Par-
liamentary Secretary is irresponsible!

e

(8. Qaerwar)

(Mr. Keuneman)

If the hon. Member to whom I re-
ferred agrees that he is irresponsible,
what can I do ? He is acting without
responsibility-

DS BN DD
(LT Friust ol &er)
(Mr. Speaker)
Please go on.

oM%Y D

(8. Qsearwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

Will the Hon. Minister of State ftell
us when he replies ; did the concept
of goodwill come into the agreement?
Did the concept of loss of profits come
into it ? How was this Rs. 55 million
arrived at?

In practice, my hon. Friends have
conceded exactly what the oil com-
panies wanted. This is something far
more important than this question of
a few million rupees here and there.
I certainly think you have paid them
far more compensation than you
should have. You have conceded far
bigger quastions than money. You
have conceded them their right to go
on exploiting all the countries in
Asia, Africa and Latin America if
they take action against their oil
ccmpanies. :
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As far as the Communist Party is
concerned, we have always insisted
that the two Acts of 1961 and 1963,
which were passed unanimously by
this House should be respected and
adhered to. When the previous Gov-
ernments began talks with the oil
companies outside the Act, on behalf
of the Communist Party, I specifi-
cally raised the question in this
House. That was on 2nd April 1963.
When I learnt that the then Minister
of Commerce, Mr. T. B. Ilangaratne,
had begun some talks with the Shell
Company, I raised this question, If I
may quote :

“I ask the Hon. Minister or any other
Minister to give this House the solemn
assurance that the Government is not try-
ing any separate negotiations with the
Shell Co. because, if they are doing that,
they are treating this House with com-
plete contempt in this respect. We de-
mand that the law passed by this House
should be respected not only by the
Government ot the United States put by
the Government of Ceylon also.”—
[Orriciar. Report, 2nd April 1963 ; Vol.
a1, es. 122-23.]

To the credit of Mr. Ilangaratne, it
must be said that he very frankly
told us, “ Yes, I am having some talks
with these people, but it is not the
intention of the Government to go
outside the law or the tribunal. ” That
was clearly and categorically stated
in this House, and it was quoted by
the hon. Member for Yatiyantota
(Dr. N. M. Perera) in his speech. It
is one thing to have a talk, but
another thing to come to an agree-
ment behind the back of the House,
against the laws of the country, and
to make a payment which constitute
an offence against the law punishable
by jail or fine, and then come to the
House and ask us to give covering
sanction to these illegalities. In this
matter, they should be in the dock
together with their Ministers !

of. @8, Vaed AT MSrNnwm S
(8. orir. 24t. Lwew LIGRTL_IT T 5T 4155 )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandéranaike)
They are in the dock !
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(8. Qsarer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

A question was raised regarding
the talks the then Minister of
Finance, the hon. Member for Yati-
yantota, had with some people of the
Shell Company when he was in
London. That discussion and
Mr. Ilangaratne’s discussion were
supposed to be the reason for the
Government of the day to suddenly
decide to have their own agreement
and make a payment. I do not want to
comment on whether the hon. Mem-
ber for Yatiyantota (Dr. N. M.
Perera) was wise in having these dis-
cussions or not. I would honestly say
that if I were in his position I would
not have had those discussions. The
hon. Member for Yatiyantota speci-
fically stated that these were explo-
ratory talks and that the Govern-
ment had no intention whatsoever of
by-passing the law or the tribunal.

oG o8&, ¢8, <R %
(Qsorrar Ggy. QY. QUIuF Fer )
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)
How ?

W% D

(8. Qsarwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

The hon. Member for Yatiyantota
specifically stated so. I would prefer
to accept his word that that was the

intention of the Government of the
day—-—[lnterruption.]

oG ed. ¢, “wudBRmn
(Qaorrey Qop. DT QU Ger)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

You cannot do it

0. ¢¥s ABRE G ¢,

(e®&
)

(2@ oisd LrsQs mréesrﬁ*—-@m(y
@ )
2 ;11&\1/1)1'. M. Abdul Bakeer Markar—Bery.

He -was the Minister of Finance.
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oY O

(Sl Gsariver)

(Mr, Keuneman)

That is why I said that if 1 were
in his position I would not have had
those discussions.

o & @d. Ludiam

(Qmerras Cg3. %{,fr. SQULIGUIT HGIT )

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

Why would you not have done it ?

o»HOsY e

(8- Glserinsy )

(Mr. Keuneman)

I think it would not have been cor-
rect when they are having a fight to
have talks with these people. That
is my idea. At the same time, I do
not blame him.

o 6. @ld. wdlA®
(Qaerres Cog. . Spuieur Har )
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)
Why do you blame us ?

emy®»O5Y D

(8. Qserwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

With the wisdom of what he did I
disagree, but you have done more.
You did not talk. My hon. Friends
have been guilty of a collective gross
contempt of this House. That is
what I want to say.

If they did not want to act outside
the law, what should they have
done ? They should have come to
this House with an amending Bill,
got the House to agree to it, then
enter into discussions and sign an
agreement. That would be respect
to this House.

The discussions which the hon.
Member for Yatiyantota had or those
that Mr. Ilangaratne had came to
nothing. They were discussions and
the only thing they revealed was that
the oil companies were more anxious
to bring that Government down than
to get a hundred million rupees. They
wanted to keep the issue boiling until
they succeeded in defeating the Gov-
ernment and get a Government which

Hewlds @55 VeHVCw
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would ecalmly accept their dictates.
That is quite clear.

Why did my hon. Friends accept
that ? They concluded an agreement.
If it were their serious intention not
to by-pass the tribunal, not to flout
the law, but to respect this House, to
respect the law for which [they voted,
they should have them come back to
the House, brought forward an amen-
ding Bill, got the agreement of this
House to change the law, and then
proceeded to take the step that fthey
took. Now they are bringing a Bill to
cover up what is almost a criminal act
on their part. Certainly, this is a penal
offence on their part. They are asking
us to give covering sanction. They say
it is a small matter. To them selling
the country is a small matter ; viola-
tion of the laws of the countiry is a
small matter ; violation of the laws of
the Government, the laws for which
they voted, is a small matter. It is like
the famous story of the lady who had
an illegitimate child who, when she
was upbraided for her deparfure from
the straight and narrow path, said,
“ it may be illegitimate, but it is only
a little one.” That is what they are
trying to say. They have done an
act of illegitimacy and now they say
it is a little one.

Mr. Speaker, when we and they
were in the Opposition, how they used
to talk about retroactive legislation ;
how they used to say, ‘“what a terrible
thing this retroactive legislation is ? ”
I remember about the Coup Bill, how
they howled about retroactive legis-
lation. Actually, they are the people
who started this business of retro-
active legislation. The first piece of
retroactive legislation that I am aware
of was after the hartal when
Mr. Dudley Senanayake brought for-
ward an amendment to the Public
Security Act whereby certain acts
done before the date of the Bill would
be an offence. There are many other
examples. These matters will be
dealt with by other speakers.

Now my hon. Friends are taking
this high and moral attitude. I notice
that the Government has agreed with-
out contest to allow an appeal to the
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Privy Council by persons convicted
in the coup case. In a communique
dated 10th June 1965, they expressed
their curious conduct in this matter as
to why lthe Government did not, at
least, formally object to this. This is
what they said, among other things :

“In this particular case important
Constitutional and legal issues arise for
determination, namely, the validity and
propriety of the special legislation which
was of a retroactive and ad hoc charac-
ter.”

That was in 1965. Now they are allow-
ing all sorts of appeals to the Privy
Council to determine the morality,
and so on and so forth. They speak of
ad hoe, retroactive legislation and
they introduce the same thing in this
House.

@@35’09525!53@3
(Furprust geurser)
(Mr, Speaker)

It is 4 p.m. now.

OB ®cs.

(B Oserieir)

(Mr. Keuneman)

I thought we are going on without
a tea interval.

DS ENGDDES,

(Furprus; oeurser)

(Mr. Speaker)

We will have a tea interval.

The Sitting is suspended till
430 p.m. On resumption, the Hon.
Deputy Chairman of Committees will
take the Chair.

de#8® S0 ¢PWMED MmOWMED a5y 8925
cEs & on 430 © mdm maw Mol
Gomed sy ew 8 o8y Ssy gy g
Cumed wwmeBdowus’ 520w sy D
GE.

@sarig. owie) 8.0, 4.80 waarans @ent. B m s
SUUC®, Ban®ib %mbumrruﬂ_mcny. @Gepssaia o

2sBonsen  [H@. M. @arres Gt @@L
S%enin g miil @yt
Sitting  accordingly suspended  till

430 p.m. and then resumed, Mgr. D
CHAIRMAN oF COMMITTEES [Mﬁ%ﬁhﬁgﬁ%

TIN FERNANDO] in the Chair.
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(8. Qaerwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

Mr. Deputy Chairman, when we
adjourned for tea I was placing before
the House evidence to show the
double-faced policy of this Govern-
ment and particularly of the U. N. P.
in relation to retroactive legislation.
I do not wish to digress on that sub-
ject because there are other speakers
who will deal more fully and more
effectively than I can with it

All T would like to say is this: if
the government feels—not only at the
time of the coup case but even in-
1965—that retroactive and ad hoc le-
gislation is so abhorrent, how does it
justify its present Bill which accepts
wnter alia the validity, retroactively,
of agreemenlts that the Government
has entered into with the oil com-
panies contrary to law, and payments
which the Government has made tfo
the oil companies even though such
payments constitute a penal offence
under the law ? We would like %o
hear, Sir, their view on this retro-
active aspect, this ad hoc aspect, of its
proposal.

I showed, before we adjourned for
tea, how this Government has nothing
but gross contempt for this House. It
has no respect for this House, it has
no respect for its own courts either. I
strongly condemn the attitude of the
Government in getting the Attorney-
General or the Solicitor-General to
intervene in a case in which a private
plaint has been filed against the Min-
ister of Nationalized Services for
aiding and abetting certain officials to
make payments contrary to law.

I can understand the Attornev-
General intervening in a private
plaint if he feels that fthe matter is of
great importance and if he feels that
the plaintiff is not sufficiently well re-
presented, and that his case might so
by default. But in this case the
attorney for the plaintiff, Mr. Sarath
Navanna, has openly stated in open
court that he suspects that the action

lahgif aggkﬁ‘@@@ernment in taking this step
{

)rlp.%ﬁg

is fle purpose of suppressing that
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prosecution, and I am in complete
agreement with the learned counsel in
that matter. I think events will show
that the Government is using all
means, whether they involve disres-
pect to this House or the courts, to
prevent any challenge to their gross
flouting of the laws for which they
themselves voted.

Hon. Members opposite have said
that they have given a little to get a
lot. I do not want to go into the whole
question of aid. But it does not seem
to be working out as well as the Gov-
ernment expected. That is all I have
to say. In actual fact, they are not
giving a little to get a lot. They are
selling the country twice over, once
in an extravagant gesture to the oil
companies. And what are they getting
in return ? Even the aid comes in
driblets, rather than as a flood as they
expected. It is not coming as gifts. It
is coming as money lent by certain
countries to us to buy goods from
them. We have to pay the money back
together with interest.

So do not think it is possible for us
to agree with the views expressed by
the hon. Member for Udupiddy (Mr.
M. Sivasithamparam) and other hon.
Members that we give a little to get
a lot.

One last point, Sir. We cannot help
wondering whether these agreements
are the end of the matter. I do not
want to allege that there are secret
clauses to the agreement. But I would
like to have certain clarifications on
" certain matters before I can come to
the conclusion that there are no
secret clauses to ithis agreement.

I have already spoken on the
question of bunkering. What is the
policy of the Government regarding
bunkering in future ? Will it con-
tinue to press forward with the
bunkering activities of the Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation ? Does it
intend to make further inroads into
the monopoly enjoyed by these three
companies in the matter of bunker
sales of 0il ? When we know that
we will know whether there are
secret clauses to this agreement.

Bewufdm Y8 VeSDCw
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A much more important matter is
the question of the oil refinery. It
was dealt with in some detail by the
hon. Member for Panadura (Mr.
Leslie Goonewardene), and 1 do not
want to repeat what he said. I will
only say this: The most profitable
enterprise will be the refinery. It
has been established beyond all
doubt that you can recoup your
entire capital investment in three
years by the establishment of this oil
refinery. I ask my hon. Friends:
Have you not either abandoned the
oil refinery or are you now thinking
of changing what has happened up
to now ? Is the question of the oil
refinery going to be the back-door
through which the o0il companies
will come back to Ceylon ?

c8CEO5Y Sy s

(B Oapepper gubian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
No.

e ek

(8. Qaarier)

(Mr. Keuneman)

Is it going to be a question of the
oil companies who lost the mono-
poly distribution, getting it back
through the monopoly of refining ?

The last Government took a
number of steps in this matter. I
have personally criticized them
when they were there. They were
much too slow about it. All the
Members of our party spoke several
times insisting that some quick
action, some quick decision, should
be taken. But we have now come
to the position of a decision to be
taken. It is not a very big question.
On the 25th of June 1964, the site
decided upon by that Government
was that it should be at Hapugas-
kanda. Tenders were invited on a
turn-key  basis. Five companies
were asked to tender—an Italian
company, The E. N. I.; a Japanese
company, The Toyo Engineering
Corvoration ; a French company,
ENSA ; a U. S. A. co-operative com-
pany, The International Co-operative
Petroleum Association ; and a Czech
companv, Technoexport. Early this
year, only three of these companies
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did submit tenders—The E. N. I
The Toyo Engineering Corporation,
and the Technoexport of Czechos-
lovakia,

The last Government could not
take a decision because of the elec-
tions.—[Interruption]. They should
have taken a decision in spite of the
elections, but they did not take a
decision. I ask you: What are you
going to do? Are you going to
re-open the whole question ? Are
You going to make a decision ? It is
on that basis we can come to a con-
clusion as to whether or not there
are secret clauses in the agreement,
I use the words “secret clause ” in
a figurative sense, not in the sense
that something has been signed and
secretly kept in the pocket. But
there are other understandings on
the basis of which these agreements
have been reached. Mr. Chairman,
I have done.

The sell-out to the oil companies
was the first of a long series of sell-
outs that this Government has done,
It is for that reason that we have
fought this so hard and so bitterly
and we will still continue to fight it,
against all these attempts to belittle
the national self-respect of Ceylon,

against all these attempts to act
against the national interest of
Ceylon. What has this Government

done ? It has discarded the laws of
Ceylon in favour of the laws of the
United States of America and the
principles of the oil companies. It
has thrown us under the concepts of
national sovereignty. It has wasted
public funds for giving these oil
companies far more than the real
value of their assets. That is the
charge against them, and though
they can get hon. Members opposite
to vote for this Bill which seeks to
give covering sanction to national
betraval, this will always stand on
record, and finally the decision will
be given by the very people to
whom they will have to appeal in
time to come. That will be the real
test. Here is the first step you have
taken on the road backward, on the
road of joining with foreism explic
ters against the national self-réspect,
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the national honour and the national
interests of Ceylon. That is why we
will oppose and continue to oppose
this scandalous piece of legislation.

g. . 4.41

HEDod @l 8 asddmdznem To.
(g¥oed )
(Bmpws @fuwrQar LIGHT L_IT T [5 U &5 &5—

2 & ST G )

(Mrs. Sirimavo R. D. Bandaranaike—
Attanagalla)

The Ceylon Petroleum (Foreign
Claims) Compensation Bill intro-
duced in this House by the Hon.
Minister of State on the 21st of
September has been debated now
for several days. Hon. Members of
the House on this side have dealt at
very great length, and ably too, with
the implications of this Bill. I do
not therefore think it necessary for
me to speak at length, and I intend
to be very brief in what I have to
say.

The question of payment of
compensation to the oil companies is
not in dispute. It was our intention
to pay compensation, it was accepted
in principle and we stand by it.
What we object to is the way it has
been decided, and the amount that
has been agreed upon to be paid as
compensation to these oil companies,
They have decideqd to pay them a
certain amount and they have
already paid part of it outside the
provisions of the Act. That is what
we object to. Hon. Members on this
side of the House have dealt with
that matter in detail and I do not

intend to speak at length on that
subject.

Hon. Members on the Government
side participating in this Debate
stated that it was the intention of
the previous Government too to pay
compensation to the oil companies in
the same way as the Government
has now decided because we had
certain discussions or negotiations
with the oil companies. It is trye
that we had negotiations with them,
wedonet deny we had negotiationg
but"it"is not correct to say that we
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were going to pay them the compen-
sation without going before the tri-
bunal. We had no intention of
violating the Act or by-passing the
tribunal. Our intention was to place
our agreement before the {ribunal
and get their approval for the

payment.

A& 8, d. LA

(Qeerres Co3. . guaiiser)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

If the tribunal did not approve ?

B8@edd AsHandsNng .
(Bapns 8pwrCer e rrprigs)
(Mrs, Sirimavo Bandaranaike)

The tribunal would have to decide
that.

DYDY D

(8. Qaarwer)

(Mr. Keuneman)

You have never heard of settle-
ments outside court being taken to
court ?

838@1687 DI aNdNGD T,
(Bmws 8pPwrGar Ly rrpruss)
(Mrs. Sirimavo Bandaranaike)

In fact, the Hon. Minister of
Commerce at the time, Mr. T. B.
llangaratne, who was the Minister
who dealt with this subject stated
categorically in this House that we
had no intention of violating the
principles of the Act. I remember
the hon. Member for Yatiyantota
(Dr. N. M. Perera) dealt with this
matter in his speech too, and I think
he read out certain portions of
Mr., Ilangaratne’s speech made at
that time. The hon. Third Member
for Colombo Central (Mr. Keune-
man) too dealt with that aspect, and
it is quite clear, therefore, that we
had no intention of paying the oil
companies compensation outside the
provisions of the Act. The fact that
we had discussions with them does
not prove that we wanted to pay
them compensation outside the Act
without placing the question before
the tribunal.

}]

(
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The Hon. Minister of State men-
tioned in his speech the other day
that we started negotiations with the
oil companies even before the tribu-
nal was set up. That is correct. We
did start certain negotiations. We
discussed the basis on which com-
pensation would be paid. The oil
companies were also claiming com-
pensation for goodwill. We had
discussions on those aspects before
the tribunal was set up. The tribu-.
nal was set up in July 1963, as this
House is aware, and sittings com-
menced in April 1964. The oil
companies appeared before the tri-
bunal several times from April till
about June and suddenly they
decided to oppose this. They said
that the tribunal had no jurisdiction.
The tribunal held against them and
they decided to go before the
Supreme Court by way of a writ.
The matter is still before the
Supreme Court as mentioned by the
Hon. Minister of State the other day
and no decision has yet been taken
on that writ.

On the part of our Government we
decided to honour any award that the
tribunal decided upon. The com-
panies persisted in their objection
and, therefore, the tribunal stands
adjourned. Immediately they applied
to the Supreme Court for a writ the
tribunal did not function. There is
ample evidence to prove that we
wanted to go before the tribunal
even if the figure was agreed upon
outside. I do not know whether the
tribunal is in existence now, but as
long as our Government was there

the tribunal had not been done away
with.

While the matter was awaiting a
decision of the Supreme Court, the
then American Ambassador, Miss
Willis, came and saw me. She was
desperate to settle this matter. She
came and saw me several times and
appealed to me to try and do some-
thing to settle this question of com-
pensation. 1 discussed it with the
Cabinet and we decided to authorize
Mr. Alvapillai, the then Permanent

Digitized by Noolahati€6EEtaEY, to conduct discussions
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with the oil companies. We indi-
cated to him a figure that he might
agree to. Negotiations started with
the oil companies. Within a day or
two after the discussions started
news came that aid had been
stopped. It came as a shock to me.
At no time did the Ambassador,
Miss Willis, make any representation
to me regarding the stoppage of aid.
Talks were going on satisfactorily,
and one fine morning we were in-
formed that aid was being stopped.
When this information was given to
me we had no alternative but to
take the steps we did take. And our
Government, being a self-respecting
Government, had to take a natural
course.

We were not prepared to be inti-
midated by America, however big
and powerful she may be, and how-
ever small a country ours may be.
We had to take certain steps and we
took them fearlessly. It is true our
Government suffered for it, but we
were happy that we were able to
stand up to a country like America
and tell her, “We do not want your
aid if you expect us to be stooges. ”

As you know; Mr. Deputy Chair-
man, the Ceylon Petroleum Corpora-
tion commenced business in April
1962. Out of a total of 750 outlets
175 were taken over. We have been
criticized for not paying compensa-
tion. These 175 outlets were scat-
tered all over the country. The
Valuation Department had to value
all these petrol sheds and outlets.
You will agree that it cannot be done
in a month or two. It took a cer-
tain amount of time for the V aluation
Department to assess all the assets
of the oil companies that the Govern-
ment had taken over at that time.
Now I would like to read from the
Annual Report and Statement of
Accounts for the year 1962, of the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, cer-
tain extracts for the information of
this House. It will prove that it was
ot possible for the Government to
Pay compensation in g2 very short

time as the oil companies ,expeetad,
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I am reading from page 13 of this
report. Under the heading “ Com-
pensation ” it says :

“The acquisition of assets, belonging to
foreign Oil Companies as well as local
residents, required at the initial stage of
the Corporation{s activities was com-
pleted only in June 1962. Work in con-
nection with the preparation of condi-
tion reports commenced in June itself.
There was some delay in this work due
to a strike in the Caltex Company lasting
about seven weeks. In July 1962, there
were several conferences between the
Corporation and the three Oil Companies
at which it was decided that condition
reports in regard to the points acquired
should be finally issued only after agree-
ment between the Corporation and the
Companies. With a view to expediting
preparation of these reports, the Compa-
nies agreed to provide at the expense of
the Corporation, copies of site plans, sur-
vey plans and lease agreements wherever
available. These documents were still
being received at the end of the year.

Meanwhile, the Chief Valuer had com-
pleted the preparation of the condition
reports of the Oil Installations at Kolon-
nawa acquired by the Corporation in
July, 1861. The next step was to prepare
an assessment of the compensation in
terms of section 47 of the Act and for
this purpose certain additional informa.
tion had to be obtained from Shell. Shell
declined to comply with the request for
additional information. It therefore be-
came necessary to make certain Regula-
tions under the Act making it obligatory
on the part of the Companies to furnish
such information when called for by the
Chief Valuer. ”

Now, you will see that it was the
oil companies that were obstructing
the speedy payment of compensation.
To quote :

“A great deal of preliminary work on
the plans and inventories had %o be con-
cluded before a notice calling for claims
under section 44 of the Act could be pub-
lished. On 11th December, 1962, the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation Regula-
tions (No. 4) were made. A notice call-
ing for claims under section 44 of the
Act was published on the 14th and 15th
December, 1962, and in terms of this
notice all persons who were interested in
the properties acquired for the Corpora-
tion were required to prefer their claims
on prescribed forms on or before 31st
January, 1963.”

They were given time till J anuary
1963 to send in their claims, S0 you
will realize, Mr. Deputy Chairman,
that, it was not possible to decide on
tireacompensation to be paid to them"
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until their claims were submitted.
When was aid stopped ? In Feb-
ruary 1963, When Miss Willis, the
then American Ambassador, saw me
she said, “ If you would at least take
meaningful steps we will be satisfied
even if you cannot decide on the
compensation ”. It was to show that
we were taking meaningful steps
that we authorized the Permanent
Secretary, Mr. Alvapillai, to start
negotiations. When we did that we
thought we had taken meaningful
steps. Then suddenly one morning
we were informed that aid had been
stopped. This shows that the oil
companies were working in close co-
operation with the American
Government. We understand that at
12 midnight they had got a call to
Washington and informed them that
they were not satisfied with the
negotiations, and then they decided
that aid should be stopped.

S5y @i

(Bap. Qserins)
(Mr. Keuneman)

Shame !

881627 AedMdsnem e
(Bpns SwrCar T Trproigs)
(Mrs. Sirimavo Bandaranaike)

I do not know whether the
American Ambassador herself was
aware of it. She did not seem to be
aware that aid was stopped when
she came and saw me after aid was
stopped. This shows how powerful
the oil companies are when they are
able to get a telephone call to
Washington and stop aid to our
Government.

We all know, and the country
knows what happened subsequently.
But it did not mean that our Govern-
ment was going to fall. It did
subsequently fall on December 3rd,
and we know what part these il
companies played in the defeat of our
Government on that date. But, as I
said before, as a self-respecting
nation, we said we are going to take
the obvious step.

Bewlds 055 CeddCw
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We know what really happened
was the oil companies dreaded an
award being made by the tribunal
because this would have been cited
as a precedent against them by other
countries in the Middle-East and in
Asia. That was really their fear and
that was why they opposed this
tribunal. They played {for time
perhaps, as the hon. Member for
Yatiyantota said, till the United
National Party came into power.—
[Interruption]. They were working
for it.

e .

(8. Qzeriner)
(Mr. Keuneman)

They were working, conspiring and
spending.

888697 azdandsnun .
(Bosws fpPwrCar UL ripriuss)
(Mrs. Sirimavo Bandaranaike)

We all know how they have worked
in other countries. The hon. Member
for Habaraduwa (Mr. Prins Guna-
sekera) read out a number of state-
ments from various books, from
American sources as well. We all
know how powerful the oil companies
are. It is no secret.

Anyway, I do not intend to take
the time of the House, but before I
conclude, I would like to say that we
are opposing this Bill. We cannot
agree to this amount that has been
agreed to by this Government, and
we cannot support this Bill. There-
fore, my party is opposing it and I
presume the other two parties of 'the
Opposition are also opposing it.

I thank you for giving me this
time to express my views on this
matter.

eBRed BBE il S
(e yU@me uré@s r&sri)
(Mr. Abdul Bakeer Markar)
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ofed. @b, Vuwed VLT N .
(B eTii. . wew LT rrpruss)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Are you taking the time allotted to
the Government ? I do not mind his
speaking. The agreement was for me
to speak from five to six, and the
Hon. Minister from six to seven.

¢ & RS @ea.

(Bl 5 QFrdevr & ser)

(Mr, de Zoysa Siriwardena)

If the Government agrees to give
the hon. Member for Dompe one
hour, we do not mind.

DODBLN BGwIEn 5N BYHS:
(Bwésaflar 9rf ys@rrsari)

(Mr. Deputy Chairman of Committees)
The hon. Member for Dompe.

g. &0, b
ofd. @d. Rwed AzTNmdsnw S,

(Ba5. orii. QY. L wew LT TTFTUEs)

(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Mr. Deputy Chairman, I am sorry
to deprive the hon. Member for
Beruwala of the opportunity of
speaking, but it is not my fault. We
have entered into an agreement with
which we have complied completely,
and as far as we can see we intend
to abide by it so as to enable the
Government to take the vote at
7 o’clock in the fulness of time after
the Hon. Minister of State has
replied.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, we had s
number of speeches from the Opposi-
tion dealing with the Ceylon Petro-
leum (Foreign Claims) Compensation
law, which has been the subject of
debate. A number of Members of this
House from the Opposition, have
already fully discussed the very
objectionable features of this Bill, in
regard to the quantum of compensa-
tion, in regard to the mode and
. manner in which this Bill has been
presented, in regard to the techniques
adopted by the oil companiesy \in
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regard to the pressures they try ?0
bring on under-developed nations in
order to compel under-developed
nations to fall in line with their
wishes and their particular monopo-
listic approaches.

I would like first of all, to raise a
somewhat different question in wind-
ing up this Debate for the Opposition.
First and foremost, I would like to
point out to you that what is incor-
porated in this Bill is not merely a
question oif compensation to oil
companies—that is relatively a small
matter—but there is something much
larger in this Bill, which makes us
want to oppose it and to debate it
fully as affecting a question of great
principle, as affecting indeed the
very Privileges of this House. I say
this for the reason that what we are
discussing here is not merely a
question of how much money we are
going to pay the oil companies,
whether it is Rs. 30 million or Rs. 40
million or Rs. 50 million. What is
involved here is the entire function
and process of Parliament itself, the
very purpose of the existence of the
Rule of Law, of constitutional con-
cepts, the very purpose of Govern-
ment, and indeed, it strikes at the
very root of our legislative authority
right here in this House.

Let us consider for a moment what
the implication is. Parliament in 1961
under the Petroleum Corporation Act,
No. 28 of 1961, decided by the unani-
mous wish of every single political
group -in this House that the oil
companies should be taken over,
subject, of course, to the promise that
it might be sabotaged subsequently,
as was stated by the hon. Member for
Homagama (Mr. Jayasuriya), then a
novice in politics. I think, even the
Hon. Minister of State co-operated
with that Bill. But, subject to that
implied threat of sabotage—it seems
as if it is now being carried out—the
United National Party at that time
supported the principles and objec-
tives of the Ceylon Petroleum Cor-
poration Act, No. 28 of 1961, in its

et firety
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What were the principles of this
Act? We decided to set up an insti-
tution, a corporate body, to take
over some of the assets of the oil
companies at that time. The Act was
subsequently amended, to give the
corporation an exclusive monopoly
of the oil business, by Act No. 5 of
1963. I shall refer to it presently. By
this law we decided to set up a Gov-
ernment agency, the Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation. We decided
to pay compensation for the assels
taken over by the Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation. We laid down the
principles on which compensation
should be paid in Section 47 (1) of
Act No. 28 of 1961. We decided that
in the event of a dispute between the
oil companies and the Ceylon Pet-
roleum Corporation or the Govern-
ment of Ceylon, there should be
special machinery to determine how
the quantum of compensation should
be assessed.

Those were substantially the
matters decided wupon by the
sovereign legislature of this country.
It constitutes part of the law of the
land. And, as I understand it, the
law of the land is sovereign in this
country. Parliament is sovereign in
our land. My understanding of it is
that the law does not merely bind the
citizens of the country nor does it
merely bind Government officials. It
binds the Government itself. The
Government is not above the law.
The Government, too, is subject to the
law and is obliged to follow the law.
The Government, too, must regard
the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
Act as part of the legislative process,
as part of the laws enacted by a
body superior tothe Government
itself. Individuals in the Government,
come here and say, “I am the
Government ” or “I am the State”.
That may be their conceit. That may
be their way of stating it. I do not,
however, think that any of us can ac-
cept the position that governments or
ministers of the government, even if
they think they are the whole of the
government, can possibly take pre-
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and four through legislation enacted
solemnly by this House in accordance
with the Standing Orders and
enshrined in the statute book.

What does Act No. 28 of 1961 tell
us? Section 47 (1) reads thus:

“The amount of compensation to be
paid under this Act in respect of any
property vested on any date in the Cor-
poration shall be the actual price paid
by the owner for the purchase of such
property and an additional sum which
is equal to the reasonable value of any
addtions and improvements made to such
property by any person who was inter-
ested, or if such purchase price is not
ascertainable, be an amount equal to the
price which such property would have
fetched if it had been sold in the open
market on the day on which the property
was vested in the Corporation :

Provided that where such property
consists of movable property or anything
attached to the earth or permanently
fastened to anything attached to the
earth, a reasonable amount for deprecia-
tion shall be deducted from the amount
which represents the price actually paid
for its purchase by the person entitled
to the compensation payable in respect
of such property, if such compensation is
based on such price.”

To summarise it: what that sec-
tion tells you is that the principle of
compensation fixed by this House is
none other than this, that the oil.
companies would be entitled to what-
ever they paid for the purchase of
the property that has now been taken
over, subject to adjustments; the
adjustments being that if they have
improved that property by adding
something to it, they would be
entitled to something for the addi-
tions so added; if, equally, the
property depreciates, something will
be deducted in respect of the depre-
ciation since they acquired that
property. In other words, the princi-
ple is one that is completely different
from what they are now seeking to
enforce. Parliament had decided that
the principle and method of payment
of compensation should be exclusive-
ly as set out in Section 47 (1).

In 1963 the Petroleum Corporation
Act was amended by an Act, No. 5
of 1963. Section 47 was not touched.
The principal change effected by the
1963 amendment was to give the

cedence and seek to rideoﬁgmg{ahagggm“(inPei:roleum Corporation a

over the legislature, or drive:ecoachavamonopo

y of the oil business and to
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deprive any other private organisa-
tion like Shell, Caltex or Esso of the
right to trade in oil and the right to
distribute oil in Ceylon. It also gave
an enabling power, which I do not
think has yet been used by the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, to
prospect for oil, to prospect for mine-
ral deposits for oil in the future.
That power does not come into play
now. So that Section 47 remained un-
changed, remained unaltered, in any
single respect and was binding on
every single citizen of this country,
on foreigners transacting business in
the country, and, what is more im-
portant, it bound the Government. It
was binding on the Ceylon Govern-
ment to observe and to apply that
particular principle.

In other words, the Ceylon Gov-
ernment was not free, if I may say
so, under Section 47 (1) to make any
payment or to act in contravention
of that Statute. If a payment was
made contrary to that section,
it would be an illegal act.
It would be an illegal act who-
ever did it, for instance, if an official
of the Petroleum Corporation chose
to pay money not based upon the
price that had been paid for the
article by 'the Shell Company at the
time they acquired it but on a
different principle. Supposing you
decide to argue and say the Shell
Company must have bought the
installation at a bargain price when
they started first of all in 1920 or so,
or that they might have ac-
quired a particular petrol pump
in 1920 and paid a very
low price for it; it may be, one
mav argue in that way, if they were
selling it among themselves to Cal-
tex or Esso that they could have got
a higher price. But Parliament in its
wisdom has laid down a standard, a
standard which binds not merely
Shell Company, not merelvy Caltex
not merely Esso but binds the Gov-
ernment of Cevlon, and, if on that
basis, the the Government chooses to
ignore the Statute, an Act of this
Parliament, my respectful submission
is that it is not merely some little
transgression which we can afford to
isnore and savy to ourselves, “ Well
Government has chosen il 'its Swis-

8 ——aoks 9270 (65/10)
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dom to depart from the law in a
small matter ” but it means that the
Government is no longer concerned
with the significance of the legisla-
tive process, it no longer admits
the sovereignty of Parliament and
that it no longer is prepared to be
bound by laws enacted by Parlia-
ment.

On that basis, we say that if indeed
the Government proposes to follow a
policy such as this, Parliament as well
may not meet because in any given
situation the Government need not
pass a law ; all that the Government
need do is to act as exactly as it
pleases, ignoring the Constitution,
ignoring the Statute, the law of the
land, and say, ‘“Well, we have a
majority. At any time our actions
are challenged, we can come before
Parliament with our majority and
pass the law. We can indeed use our
majority. We do not want laws. ”

There are sections in the constitu-
tion which tell us you cannot draw
money out of the Consolidated Fund
except in a particular way, either by
a Resolution of this House or by a Bill
presented by a Minister or a Parlia-
mentary Secretary authorizing a
withdrawal. The Government will
say to itself! “ That is the law—true,
—but we are not concerned with that.
Let us draw the money first and if
anyone challenges us or prosecutes us
in a court of law saying that our
action is illegal, it is very simple, we
will come before Parliament, we will
present the Bill afterwards saying let
us legalize everything that is illegal ”.
And, on that basis, the Government
says, “We are the Government, we
are the State. As far as we are con-
cerned, we have the power to get our
laws passed ”. And, indeed, the law
we are debating now will be passed,
but what we object to is the very
principle and foundation on which
this law is based, namely, the

assumption that the Government
iIs not bound by the law, that

the Ministers of the Government
are capable of making with-
drawals of money and making pay-

ments contrary to the Statute, and
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when they are prosecuted the Attor-
ney-General is there. We can always
send him to court, tell him what to
do, tell him to withdraw his action,
take over the prosecution under Sec-
tion 199 of the Criminal Procedure
Code. If there are inconvenient law-
yers who are going to appear against
our Hon. Ministers and against the
Chairmen of our Corporations, it does
not matter very much really because
we will exercise the powers of asking
our Attorney-General to go to court
and enter a nolle prosequi. We will
ensure that our Ministers and officers
are going to be discharged from any
legal process to which they are sub-
ject because we are in the position to
tell the Attorney-General what to do.
Then the Attorney-General will go
to court like a tame pigeon and act
in the way that his masters want him
to act and ensure that Ministers and
the Chairman of the Petroleum Cor-
poration are not going to get into
trouble,

Is all this legal ? Is it valid ? What
are the principles by which we are
governed ? I cannot do better than to
start by quoting a speech. You have
heard many speeches in the recent
past of the hon. Member for Nallur
(Dr. Naganathan) ; and, I think, I
may be permitted on this occasion to
quote him for the edification of his
Colleagues in the National Govern-
ment. This is what the hon. Member
for Nallur said.

SuUE OB oty Dcs.

(8. Qagedpper sauGrian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)

I thought you do not take him
seriously ?

ofed. d. Dewed AL MSNney Ocs.
(8. eris. oy, L wew LedrL_ropruss)
~ (Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

I do not. I thought that you did.
This is what he said :

“If the Front Benchers over there will
kindly listen, we want to explain to them
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or constitutional science. What consti-
tutes a state? In the old days of abso-
lute monarchy the king was the state. He
could say: ‘I am England’ ‘I am
France’ or ‘I am Lanka’”

As the Hon. Prime Minister now
says.

“He could say that because the people
had no power. They had no rights. They
had no self-government. They could not
rule. They had no choice whatsoever.
But with the coming of democracy and
self-government, sovereignty has devolved

from the king and now vests in the
people. We people are the sovereign
people. We people constitute the scace.

That 1s the position.

Yet Ministers seem to have an idea that
a Board of Ministers or a Cabinet consti-
tutes the state. That is the attitude that
appears to be behind this legislation
which we are considering. I waat them
to understand that in a democracy the
people are sovereign and that they consti-
tute the state. Everyone of us is a king
in his own right.”

The hon. Member for Nallur has a
peculiar way of saying this. He says
everyone of us is a king thinking of
his own “ Arasu” !

“Everyone of us is a king in his own
right. That is the concept that under-
lies self-government. Yet we all appre-
ciate that it is a practical impossibility
for every man to govern S0 wnat
we do 1s to have an institution ecalled
Parliament and other institutions called
Courts of Justice. In thess two institu-
tions the people have divested themselves
of or rather deposited or reposed their
kingly functions.

......

What are the kingly functlons? The
functions of rulership on the one hand
and the functions of justice on the
other. But we still maintain in ourselves
our sovereignty. Kingship also has two
parts. One is the prerogatives and ma-
Jesty of kingship ; the other is the duties
and responsibilities of kingship. So the
sovereign people while rataining the pre-
rogatives and majesty of kingship do not
have the time to dischargz th2 respon-
sibilities of kingship. Therefore the res-
ponsibilities and duties of kingship are
enshrined in two democrate institutions,
Parliament and the Courts of Justice.
That 1s why there is a division of
powers.”"—[OFFICIAL REporT, 1st March,
1962 ; Vol. 46, c. 2705-6.]

It is precisely this passage that I
wish to quote for the edification of
thfe Front Benchers. I want to re-
mind them of the words of their Col-

a little philosophy and palitical, science . league the hon. Member for Nallur
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that we must never rorget that Par-
Lhhament is ultimately the sovereign
authority in this country and that the
laws laid down by Parliament are
binding on the Governments by
which they are passed as they are
binding on the whole of our people.

What has happened here ? We find
in the compensation agreements
tabled before this House a solemn
statement in the preamble :

‘“ AND WHEREAS as a result of such
negotiations the Government and the
Shell Company have agreed that in de-
termining the appropriate compensation
due the principle of fair market value
be recognised as applying to the overall
settlement. ”

May I ask, is there one word on the
principle of fair market value in Act
No. 26 of 1961, except where there
is no quest.on of the price at which
the article was acquired? It is a
proviso which does not come into

play—

euCOsY dwllcn @

(8. Qapppar guian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
Why not ?

Ofd. @8, Vel LTSy e,
(8. eris. QYr. Lwew L rrprués)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

—as there is a price which was paid
for whatever the property acquired
by the oil companies at the moment
of acquisition. Section 47 makes it
quite clear that if the price is ascer-
tainable that the oil companies should
be paid that price for whatever is
taken over from them and considar-
ations of market value do not arise.
That law bound the Government. The
Government did not deign to come
before Parliament and ask us
whether we would like to change
that principle; they did not come
before this Parliament and tell us,
“Look, that law was passed in 1961.
There is no law that is incapable of
being changed. We would like to
reconsider it. We would like to in-
troduce a new principle, a new prin-
ciple of fair market value.” What
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did the Government do ? They pro-
posed to ignore the law and eater
upon an agresment with a forglgn
country, to have a new principle..
They have chosen to adopt a new
principle, may be as a price, may be
as part of a bargain, may be as
beggars having no choice, may be
they went before their American
masters with the begging bowl—one
does not know. All we can say is
that they chose to ignore Parliament,
to ignore us, and to tell us, “ Whether
we are capable of ascertaining the
prices at which the articles were ac-
quired or not, we are not bothered
about it, we do not care for it; we
are going on a new principle, we are
going to sign a new covenant.” And
they signed it. They signed it in de-
fiance of the law. They signed it in
the supreme confidencs that Parlia-
ment is there to say “yes” to any-
thing the Government chose to do,
because they have got a majority, and
they seemed to think that all laws
already enshrined in the statute book
do not count for anything and that
they could ignore the law, that they
could afford to say, “ We will change
the law.” '

If this law is to be changed, what
are the implications ? The law is
being changed not in accordance with
the wishes of this House but accord-
ing to the wishes of another contract-
ing party to an agreement already
signed and we in Parliament are
called upon to accept a new principle
of compensation. We are being told,
“You have to pass this law now, be-
cause the American and the British
companies want it this way. We have
already signed an agreement to this
effect. This is a principle that the
foreigners want. ”

The Parliament and the people are
supposed to be sovereign, they are
supposed to be at the beck and ecall
of a Cabinet of Ministers who choose
to regard themselves—in the words
of the hon. Member for Nallur—as “ I
am Lanka, I am the nation, I am
democracy, I am the Government, 1
am the State.” Ministers with this
mentality come to us and tell us,

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org


http://www.noolahamfoundation.org/
http://www.noolaham.org/wiki/index.php/%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%81%E0%AE%A4%E0%AE%B1%E0%AF%8D_%E0%AE%AA%E0%AE%95%E0%AF%8D%E0%AE%95%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%8D
http://aavanaham.org/

1381
Comy 258 el 9578 (Sed@m B8w® «id)
amsf cd@sm

[ofef, @8 Bud defadrnen ]
“ Now, we want the law changed. And
why do we want the law changed ?”
Not because the law here is wrong,
not because the principle here is
wrong—not one word has been said
so far that the principle here is
wrong. All that we have been told
is this, “ The only terms on which we
can settle this matter is by paying a
sum of money. To obtain foreign aid
we had to sign this agreement. We
had to sign anything they wanted us
to sign. After all, what does it
matter ? We are only saying,
Whereas the Government and the
Shell Company being desirous of
reaching an early settlement in the
matter of compensation have resumed
and concluded negotiations. And
whereas as a result of such negotia-
tions the Government and the Shell
Company have agreed that in deter-
mining the appropriate compensation
due the principle of fair market value
be recognised as applying to the over-
all settlement’.” This is merely a
recognition of a principle in defiance
of our law. Having recognized it, is
there one word in this agreement to
say that the amounts of compensation
stated are in accordance with even
the principle of fair market value ?
There is not one word ; two contract-
ing parties have agreed to a lump
sum of money. They say, “ You pay
us so much cash down, and the
balance in instalments over a period
of five years. You pay the balance
down in sterling, interest-free.” Of
course, it does not matter if it is in-
terest free; you add a sufficient
amount to the capital. It does not
make much of a difference if you
amortize the amount and add to the
capital. In fact, they are prepared
to give foreign aid and the price of
giving is the price of taking. A
foreign Government says, “ You pay
us first; we will give you after-
wards.” It is a nice idea! In other
words, something is wrong with this
Eﬁgreement if you stop to think about
it.

You must pay. How are you going
to pay in five years ? Obviously, out
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of the foreign aid. We are getting aid
and we have our resources in the
Central Bank. To augment our
resources in the Central Bank we are
going to get foreign aid. Having
augmented those resources we are
going to draw off small sums like
£400,000 sterling for Shell Company
once a year and pay it to them.
Mr. Chairman, I ask you, if we are
concerned with—

CBEOBY Hwioxy e

(B Qaper ppar gubiian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
Hundred times that.

ofed. @l dstd DTNy S,
(Bp. eris. Q. Lwew LTLTTFTLES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

I will come to your hundred times
in a moment. Please do not take up
my time now because I do not have
more than one hour.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to tell
you that if we are going to pay atten-
tion to our laws, my respectful sub-
mission is that the Government must
start by setting everyone a good
example. They must be the model
citizen. If they do not observe the
law how can they blame the peop'=
of this country if they ignore the
law ? When the people act as crimi-
nals, the Government must be able
to say to us, to the people of this
country, “We ask you to obey the
laws because we ourselves obey the
laws. We are bound by the laws”.
When the Government says, “ We are
not bound by laws; we do not so
regard ourselves ; if our Minister is
prosecuted, Oh, we have a way out
of that one ; we will fix the Attorney-
General”, it seems to wus, Mr.
Chairman——

ad o5Y ey Bwn® (d¥ed Y,
e o 3¢ wYedwm ©eB)
epuichl & T io—

BHEL

(Qszer ey Glor e G35

grermss  sLQEC0uE, sure,
Gf_}ﬂ'éﬁ@m‘fﬂ"ﬁgg cg{mméarrf“)
(The Hon. Montague Jayewickreme—

Minister of Public Works, Posts and
Telecommunications)

Just as you did.
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(D). eris. gy 1w UL T T FTi&Gs)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

—that the Government is certainly
falling upon very evil ways indeed.

Sir, the hon. Member for Weligama
tells me, “ Just as you did”. May I
quote to him his own Colleague, the
Minister of State, from the HANSARD
of 1st March 1962, volume 46°? I
would like to quote to him the
passage appearing at column 2938 to

show him how we “fixed” the
Attorney-General in our time. I
would like to quote that to

him for his edification because he
seems to talk of our “fixing” the
Attorney-General. I will take him up
on that straightway. This is what the
Hon. Minister of State said at column
2938 :

“1 was saying that even as Minister
of Finance I have had to go before court,
The hon. Leader of the Opposition and
1 were charged at the instance of the
Hon. Minister of Finance ”,

—that is myself—
“with breaking the law.”

—using
permit—

loudspeakers without a

“We were taken to the magistrate’s
court. If we were convicted, we would
have lost our civic rights. But we were
acquitted. An attempt was made to take
the case in appeal to the higher court.
Fortunately, the law officers were rather
independent and that step was not taken.
So, we were accused in a case, ”

In other words, what does it
prove ? Far from proving that we
interfered with the Attorney-General
what we definitely say is that from
the words of the Hon. Minister of
State himself, it has been proved that
the Attorney-General stood supreme
as an independent person in the days
of the Sri Lanka Freedom Party
Government, and had not become 3

kind of stooge, a position to which he
has been reduced now.

Look at the position. Just consider
it.—[Interruption]. But in your days
you fixed them well and truly and
they stayed fixed.
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CBE OB &y ®cs.

(8. Qopev pper epuifman)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
But you also tried.

ofed. 8. Awed DeTdrncizy Ot

(8. oris. . 1_wow LehTL T FTWES)

(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

You mean to say if we wanted to
try, if we wanted to give an order to
the Attorney-General, it could not
have been done ? But my point is
this: we did not do it, and the
Attorney-General won the plaudits
of no less a person than the Hon.
Minister of State in the matter of
maintaining his independence.

Why does the Minister of State now
adopt a different standard towards
the poor Attorney-General ? Why
does he tell the Attorney-General,
“Now you must go into court and
enter a nolle prosequi against the
Hon. Minister of Nationalized Ser-
vices, Mr. Sugathadasa ? When Mr.
Sugathadasa commits a crime is it
any different from Mr. Jayewardene
committing a crime ? If the Attorney-
General was free to take a decision
then, why is the Attorney-General
not free now, may I ask ?

Is it because you were talking
about, “fortunately the law officers
were rather independent”? Why
is it that you now do not con-
sider “ fortunately some law officers ”
to be independent ? Why do you have
to give directions one after another :
“ Please do not go to the Privy Coun-
cil to oppose an appeal ; do not dare
to allow a private prosecution of the
Minister of Nationalized Services or
of Mr. Alvapillai” ? Is it necessary
that the Attorney-General should be
reduced to this degrading state ?

My Friend the hon. Member for
Weligama, before he starts talking,
should first read those remarks of his
Colleague to see the low depths to
which they have now sunk. The Hon.
Minister of State himself has, on more
than one ocecasion, told us about the
prineiples of judicial and quasi-judi-
etalofunctions, and how the courts
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should act in these matters. I believe
at column 2755 of the same HANSARD
of the 1st March 1962, he told us what
the Soulbury Report had to say in
regard to the judicial and quasi-judi-
cial functions as far as the Minister
of Justice was concerned. He quoted
this passage in extenso ; readng from
Chapter 19, paragraph 396 of the
Soulbury Report:

“« We would therefore make it amply
clear that in recommending the establish-
ment of a Ministry of Justice we intend
no more than to secure that the Minister
shall be responsible for the administra-
tive side of lsgal business, for obtaining
from the Legislature financial provision
for the administration of justice and for
answering in the Legislature on matters
arising out of it. There can, of course,
be ro quastion of the Minister of Justice,
having any power of interference in or
control over the performance of any
judicial or quasi-judicial function, or the
institution or supervision of prosecutions.
We have considered whether the subjects
and functions in question might be dis-
tributed among other Ministries but have
reached the conclusion that it would be
most conducive to the efficient handling
of the administrative work in question
if they were centred in a new Ministry.
Since the Minister’s functions would be
political and administrative, it would be
immatsrial whether he were a lawyer or
not, although the Prime Minister, if there
were a lawyer of distinction among his
supporters, might possibly wish to offer
him the portfolio.”

The crucial words are:

“There can, of course, be no question
of the Minister of Justice, having any
power of interference in or control over
the performance of any judicial or quasi-
judicial function, or the institution or
supervision of prosecutions.”

What the Soulbury Commission
was considering there was the desi-
rability or otherwise of creating a
Minister who would have the power
to supervise the discretion of the
Attorney-General in his judicial or
quasi-judicial function and determin-
ing whether the Attorney-General
should be an independent authority
—independent of the executive—free
to take his decision. Following that
principle, my good Friend, the Hon.
Minister of State paid the law offi-
cers of the country a compliment for
their independence in dec’'ding not
to appeal against his acquittal in re-
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Why is it that you are now giving
the Attorney-General directions at
every turn? In the course of the
last six months you have virtually
given orders—and you have admitted
it—to the Attorney-General, *you
shall not oppose the Privy Council
appeal.” You are now telling him,
“you shall go into court and take
over the prosecution from Dr. Colvin
R. de Silva in respect of the Minister
of Nationalized Services under Sec-
tion 199 of the Criminal Procedure
Code.” These are sure marks of des-
potism which is beginning to make
inroads into the sovereignty of this
House, and we, in this House, have no
alternative but to lodge the strongest
protest that we, as Members of this
House, are capable of, against this
type of insidious attacks upon demo-
cratic process in the name of dzmo-
cracy, which they pledged to protect
at the last election.

Today, our Parliament is meaning-
less. We pass a law for what ? Why
do we bother to pass a law ? Is it
for the Government, if it chooses, to
ignore those laws, to do exactly as
it pleases, so that when, under the
law, they are prosecuted, they can
make arrangements by ignoring
paragraph 396 of the Soulbury Com-
mission Report ? They say, “ that is
what Soulbury says. We are not in-
terested in Soulbury now. We are
the Government. We are the State.
We are not concerned with Comm s~
sion Reports or the Constitution. We
will tell the Attorney-General where
he gets off,” or he would not get an
extension of office, he will be fired.

It is indeed a sad state of affairs
when the Government comes to the
stage of regarding people like the
Attorney-General—people in inde-
pendent positions—as stooges for pur-
poses of dealing with laws which
they themselves must, at least,
protect.

I do not say that a law is incapable
of change. If the Government wants
to change a law, that process is
always available to it. Thev can come
before this House and explain to us

gard to the use of loud Speakers, \ o their reasons for it. We will debate
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it. We do not always say we will
take the same attitude as they do.
But we shall certainly discuss it, but
do not do it first and expect us to
act as a rubber stamp for your sordid
deals with the American imperialists.

Those are our objections. We object
very strongly to be asked to endorse,
after an event, a payment which has
already been made in the teeth of the
law, a payment which is made ille-
gally, and for which—you know it ;
it is a disgrace, I say,—your Minister
should stand as a person accused, a
criminal, before a court of law.
Why ? Because you chose to ignore
the law. Because you chose to ignore
the law, and now to get your Minister
acquitted, you quickly turn round
and say, “ Let us deem that the law
had always been different. Let us
deem that we have an agreement
with the American and the oil
companies.” Let us deem and asume
that these laws have been passed in
place of the Petroleum Corporation
Act. Let us regard this law as taking
precedence over all the laws previ-
ously passed by Parliament, in order
to render your sordid actions valid.
As I said, the basic principle under-
lying the whole of this new statute
is a dangerous attack and an on-
slaught upon the liberties of the
people, of which we are the custodi-
ans in this House, and so long as we
remain the custodians, if you, as the
Government, choose to develop an
inflated sense of ego, and begin to
think in terms of saying that you are
the men appointed to rule, that you
are the king with his private arasu,
if you begin to regard yourself, each
of you, as vested with kingly power
and authority, as the hon. Member
for Nallur (Dr. Naganathan) pointed
out, all I can say is that we ghall
fight you, and we shall fight you
to a man-—[Interruption]. As far as
I can see, it is you who will have to
ficht on the beaches, because you
have withdrawn the army from
Valvettiturai and Jaffna! It is you
who will have to fight on the beaches
because one half of your National

Government objects to %ﬁfm%%ﬁﬁc
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patrolling the beaches. If it comes to
a fight, | suspect you will have to
lead the vanguard.

Retrospective legislation, as such,
is not an issue on which I should care
to join issue with the Government.
There are situations in which ex post-
facto legislation may be justified. I
do not deny that, but everything de-
pends on the circumstances. In the
course of this discussion, the hon.
Third Member for Colombo Central
(Mr. Keuneman), referred to the
coup Debate and the remarks which
were made by Members of the
present Government who then sat in
the Opposition, and what they had to
say about retrospective legislation. I
do not propose to deal with the ques-
tion of rights as far as the accused in
that case were concerned. That is
something which may be regarded
properly as sub judice, but I do wish
to point out where actions were per-
formed which were against the laws,
as they stood at the time, what the
Supreme Court had to say in the
course of that judgment. They re-
ferred to the procedure for investiga-
tion that had been adopted. I am
quoting from page 247, 67 New Law
Reports, Queen wvs. Liyanage and
others. There appears this passage :

“There was no legal basis for much
that was done, including the arrest of
thehiourth defendant and Johnpillai that
night.”

The Supreme Court was saying, in
other words, that the actions of the
then Government were illegal, were

against the law, as far as the arrest
of the fourth defendant and John-
pillai were concerned on the night
of the coup. They were complain-
ing, in other words, that we, as the
Government, broke the law, that we
acted without a legal basis—for all
we know for doing exactly what the
Government has done. This Govarn-
ment has acted without a legal basis
in handing away our assets to the
foreigners for their own sordid ends,

S‘M%#f%&wes the Supreme Court say ?
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“ But, in times of extreme emergency,
the State may be compelled by necessity
to disregard for a time the ordinary safe-

uards of liberty in defence of liberty
itself, and to substitute for the careful
and deliberate procedure of the law a
machinery more drastic and speedy in
order to cope with the urgent danger.”

In other words, what the Supreme
Court was saying is this. There are
situations where a government may
be justified even where the law does
not permit them to do something,
where it has no authority to take
some action, in such circumstances
as in defence of liberty, as a safe-
guard of liberty, to take some action.
And that arises in cases, according
to the Supreme Court, where “ the
State may be compelled by necessity
to disregard for a time the ordinary
safeguards of liberty in defence of
liberty itself and to substitute for
the careful and deliberate procedure
of the law a machinery more drastic
and speedy in order to cope with the
urgent danger. ”

The Hon. Minister of State is for
once applauding a statement in the
coup judgment. No doubt, if the
Attorney-General had gone to the
Privy Council, he too would have
been able to say, hear! hear! But
you stopped him going. My objec-
tion is that you reduced the Attorney-
General to a situation where he can-
not even go to the Privy Council and
say, hear ! hear ! to our judges of the
Supreme Court.

As far as this question is concerned,
I would like to ask hon. Members of
this House, what is the urgent danger,
what is the liberty which you want
to safeguard in this case by intro-
ducing legislation after the event,
after performing illegal acts first ?
What is the indecent hurry to pay
these foreign oil companies so much
money that you were not in a position
to introduce this Bill before the House
and tell us the reason why you say
that your principles of compensation
enshrined in our legislation are
wrong ?

Bewldm @578 @edDCew
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(Mr. Sheliton Jayasinghe)
There was a famine.

Afef. @l Dwed BLTMSBNcn D
(Bm. eTi). Q. Lwe LSTLTTETUES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

I think there is going to be a
famine after you people assumed
office. From what we can see, and of
your United Nations representative’s
approaches of describing China as the
“ yeriest outlaw ” and of dropping the
most horrible faux pas diplomatically,
I think, it is inevitable that you will
sooner or later be confronted with a
major difficulty. But bzfore we come
to that, as far as this statute is con-
cerned, may I ask you, so far what
has happened ?

You say you are getting foreign aid.
The foreign aid is still coming. As far
as we can see the shortage of goods
is still there, the prices remain the
same, there is no great influx of goods
that we are able to see around, and
there are no new prospects. Foreign
aid can come, but is there any objec-
tion to why you should not have
come before Parliament and obtained
the express authority of this House
to the changes you wanted before
you give effect to them ? The very
principle here is dangerous. Consi-
der it for yourselves. Tomorrow
you may find yourselves in a situation
by which citizenship, for example,
can be given to all and sundry
against the law, and we can be
asked afterwards to authorize it by
saying, “ Shall we amend the Citizen-
ship Act?” You might find, for
example, official recognition given to
a different language against the law,
and we will be told afterwards,
“Well, shall we change the Official
Language Act ? ” This is not possible.

My respectful submission is, these
are the dangers with which we are
confronted. We introduce laws in this
House because those laws are the
very ordinances which govern our
lives and our conduct, and, because
we like to be ensured, we ask, which
is igoingoto govern the Government ?
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I believe Juvenal once said, Quis
custodiet ipsos custodes ?—which
means, I think, “ Who shall govern
our governors ?” And as tar as
Ceylon’s Constitution is concerned, I
think, it is certainly the Parliament.

Every one of you who think you
are the Government are still subject
to Parliament and must continue to
remain subject to Parliament so long
as you are pledged to serve the con-
cept of democracy which every one of
you is pledged to protect and main-
tain. But what happens ? Why do we
meet in Parliament here ? Why do we
want to discuss regional counciis
Bill ? Why do you not establish your
regional councils first and then come
to us and say, “Well! It does not
matter whether there is a legal
warrant or authority for it. We will
do first and come before you after-
wards. Here are the regional councils
we have established ; here are the
powers and functions we have done
away with ; and the regional councils
have come up now.” What is the need
for a Cabinet or Government if the
Government themselves are not going
to be bound by the law ?

My submission is that, so long as
Ministers enter upon agreements of
this character in the teeth of the law,
against the law and expect us to act
as a rubber stamp, we in Parliament
will continue, whatever our numbers
may be, whether we are in a position
to outvote you or not, to protest as
strongly as is humanly possible, not
merely on the basis, as the Hon.
Minister of State says, whether it
shall be Rs. 40 million or Rs. 50
million. According to him, it is a
small question. It may be that no big
principle is involved. But so long as
Parliament has decided that the basis
of compensation shall be on the
amount of what the oil companies
held at the time of the acquisition of
their assetfs, we say it is wrong and
unlawful for the Government of
Ceylon without paying any heed to
that question, without attempting to
find out how much that was, without
attempting to ascertain the facts, to
have agreed to pay a lump sum of
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money and then say, “Let it be
agreed, and we shall assume for pur-
poses of argument, that the principle
we followed was the principle of fair
market value.” I think, if you ask the
Hon. Minister of State to itemize the
items in the schedule and tell us what
the fair market value of each item is,
I think, he will not be able to answer
that question in respect to each of the
items in the schedule.

He says in the preamble that there
are principles of fair market value
guiding him. Suppose we ask him to
describe to us what the nature and
extent of each of the pieces of land
involved in the schedule are and what
is the value of each, can the Hon.
Minister of State tell us how much
the Government considers the fair
market value on each of them ? The
principle claimed to have been stated
there is, in fact, no principle at all.
It is merely an eye-wash for the sake
of protecting the interest of the
foreign oil companies in case they are
called upon to face nationalization in
some other under-developed country.

Assuming that the oil companies
find their own interest threatened

anywhere, from the continent of
Africa to the furthest corners of
the Pacific, you will find that
the oil companies will point to
this disgraceful agreement with
the Government of Ceylon and
say, “We have established the

principle of a fair market value.” It
has not been established because the
Government has not, in all serious-
ness, made an attempt to do anything,
All that they did was to conduct a
sordid horse deal to get their aid
restored. How much are they willing
to pay ? And, after all, if they start
giving us aid, we will be able to pay
them out of their own aid. Therefore,
let us agree to anything. Why bother
ibou?t the Petroleum Corporation
e A

They present an argument and say
to us, “ Well, did not your Ministers
also hold talks outside the statute ?
Why are you now complaining acainst
what we did ? The answer is simple
no Minister of the Sri Lanka Freedon;
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Party Government or the Coalition
Government ever acted against the
law. Saow us a single instance where
we were liable to prosecution ? If we
were liable to prosecution, I have no
doubt, you would have enjoyed

prosecuting us.

" I believe the Hon. Minister of State

once said he is certain that I shall be
on trial in reference to the coup case.
I have no doubt if it was possible to
have me indicied or any Minister of
our Government indicted, they
would have enjoyed doing it. But the
fact is we never broke the law. We
applied the law and we acted within
it. The only occasion when we acted
without legal warrant or authority
was on the night of 29th January,
1962, for which even the Supreme
Court has held that it is sometimes
necessary to do away with the law to
safeguard our liberty and in defence
of liberty itself.

So, Mr. Chairman, you find our-
selves in that situation. The
S. L. F. P. is being charged that we
entered into an agreement against
the statute, that we were willing to
do a horse deal. May I say that we
never broke the law on a single
occasion as far as the Petroleum
Corporation Act was concerned ? I
can speak with authority. Although
I was Minister of Finance at the
time the Petroleum Corporation Act
was enacted in 1961 and although I
ceased to be Finance Minister there-
after in circumstances which I will
not bore you with now, still I would
state this, I had been a Member of
the Cabinet and I can speak with
authority.

o0& Y6l ¥wS®

(Qzarres QurenCL @ sqwelldris)
(The Hon. Montague Jayewickreme)
Tell your party now.

ofe. @l D AFHMEwm Ocs.
(8. eris. gyi. _wew LIS LT T 5T 1185 )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Tell my party what ? Tt does not
matter how I ceased to be the Min-
I1ster of Finance. I am saying I, am,,
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not going to bore you with that. But
I am go.ng to tell you something
else. Notwithstanding my not being
Finance Minister, I remained in the
Cabmet and I can speak with
authority on this question. At no
stage was the Ceylon Government
during the days of the S. L. F. P.
prepared to act in any way contrary
to tne principles of the Ceylon Petro-
leum Corporation Act. If by abiding
by the law, if by standing within the
law, if by standing upon the legal
rights created for our people under
laws passed by our sovereign Parlia-
ment—and that includes every single
political party, including the United
National Party—if they ask for the
reason why the Americans were not
prepared to give us aid, may I say
this ? It is true that if the choice
lies between being subservient to the
will of our people as enshrined in
our statute and being subservient to
a foreign country and foreign rulers,
we shall choose to remain subser-
vient to the people of our country
and act as their servants and not as
the servants of foreign masters.
That will be the principle which
will guide the S. L. F. P. at all times.

We are told, “You were not
successful ”. Certainly, we were not
successful in selling our rights with
the laws of our Parliament. We
have never done that and we never
attempted that. At every stage
what did we try to do? We tried
to find out. We told the oil compa-
nies, “Please give us the valuation
of your assets—your book values are
there—the price you paid for them
on the basis of your book values.”
Our position is the document which
you yourself tabled. The Ceylon
Petroleum  Corporation  Annual
Report and Statement of Accounts
for 1964 makes the position crystal
clear. And the position was, to put
it very briefly, that the oil companies
flatly refused to give any information.
Read what is written at page 14 of
the Annual Report and Statement of
Accounts for 1964 of the Ceylon

Petroleum Corporation. This is what
it says:

“The Companies,
disclose their basig
aduring nthenproceedin

however, did not
at any stage but
gs they questioned
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the jurisdiction of the Tribunal to hear
and aetermine this matter. 'They con-
tended that the Tribunal was wrongly
cons.ituted. The Government undertook
to honour any award made by tne
Tribunal notwithstanaing this alleged
lack of jurisdiction. The Companies,
however, persisted in their objections
but were over-ruled by the bTr1buna1.
The objection was taken agaln before
the s=cond panel of the Tribunal but
with the same result. The Companies
thereafter filed papers in_the Supreme
Court and moved for Writ of Quo

Warranto and Certiorari...”

See, what has happened Mr. Chair-
man. Even as far as the agreements
today are concerned, the Government
is sull saying, notwithstanding any
alleged lack of jurisdiction on the
part of the tribunal, these agreements
shall be valid. The companies did
not to this day withdraw their objec-
tions to the jurisdiction of the
tribunal, they merely asked the
Ceylon Government to say whether
the tribunal has jurisdietion or not.
You people shall still be able to say
that your agreements bind you.

My. Chairman, I am glad that the
Hon. Prime Minister is here. I was
pointing out the danger of Govern-
ments ignoring the very statute, the
law passed by this House, of treating
laws as though they are playthings,
things to be discarded, things to be
ignored, things that do not bind
governments, and to your being able
to say to yourself, “ As long as we
have a majority we can come and
pass new laws to validate anything
that we have done”. You can do it.
Then the Parliament becomes a
meaningless formality, if having a
majority, we are in a position fto
pass and validate any single thing we
do. If the law says that you must
adopt one principle of compensation,
and if the Hon. Minister of National-
ized Services, in consequence of his
foreign agreements, acts differently
and gets himself prosecuted, gets into
a scrape, you say, “ We will get him
out of the scrape”. What is the
position ? If you ignore paragraph
396 of the Soulbury Commission
Report which makes the Attornev-
General a judicial or quasi-judicial
functionary independenti cqof nodhe
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executive, we will ignore a Very
salutary principle which the Hon.
Mnister of State once praised, that
is, the Attorney-General being inde-
pendent as far as the loud speaker
case was concerned—a case in which
the Hon. Prime Minister and the Min-
ister of State both figured. But, now
they say, “We will make the
Attorney-General a veritable stooge
to come before the law courts and
withdraw prosecutions.”

Mr. Deputy Chairman, these things
have happened in other countries too.
By the laws and customs of Parlia-
ment, by the traditions and unwritten
constitut:on in Britain, there was a
stage where a king—l refer to
His Majesty, King Charles the
First—who, like the hon. Member
for Nallur (Dr. Naganathan) stating
“1 am the State; I am the Govern-
ment”, once said, “I propose to
impose taxation without the autho-
rity of Parliament”. He depended
for that statement on his royal pre-
rogative. We know the case of the
levy of Ship Money; we know the
consequences that followed from it,
how the independent middle-class
led by Pyne and Hampden stood
against him and said, “ We are not
concerned, we refuse to bow to the
taxation which had been levied
without the authority of Parliament.
We will not accept the rule of prero-
gative, the rule of the executive ; the
Parliament itself has rights ”’, and the
%\I@embers of Parliament stood against

im.

I think we all agree today that
those persons in England, those un-
known burghers of the County of
London, who stood against the King’s
taxation, laid the foundation stone of
democracy, and the d=mocratic pro-
cess which the U. N. P. talks so
glibly nowadays. And, if, indeed,
we recognize that what the Long
Parliament did in overruling the
judgment of the Court Exchequer in
the case of Ship Money, in the case
of Payne and Hamnden, were correct
then we accept the princinle that
when Governments act against the
law, and the executive sesks to set
itselfoup as supreme with phrases
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like, “ I am the Government, I am the
State, I am the King, I am the
Monarch ” as the hon. Member for
Nallur says, “I am a king in my own
little Arasu ”, then all I can say is we
have reached a sorry pass. Now,
when Governments come, and
Governments go, and the laws do
not amount to a damned thing—I am
sorry for the use of that word,
Mr. Deputy Chairman, but I must
say that this is the sort of contempt
into which the laws are being
brought by this Government.

As far as the compensation is con-
cerned, we were told by the Hon.

1 Minister of Nationalized Services

that there were discussions with
Mr. Ilangaratne, a former Minister

of Commerce and Trade, and of
Finance. There were discussions
certainly.

I am personally aware that at the
time the assets had been acquired the
Chief Valuer—he was the authority
we relied on—said, “In the absence
of a statement by the oil companies
as to how much they had paid for
the assets, the maximum assessment
I make in respect of each and every
item, having itemized them, is of the
order of Rs. 30 million.” That was
the price the Chief Valuer put on
them. Of course he said, “I may be
wrong. I do not say my valuation is
final and conclusive. I say that any
compensation tribunal is not bound to
accept every word of what I say.”
So we asked him this question :
“Can you please tell us, assuming
that you are wrong, by what extent
or by what margin, can you be
wrong ? To what extent is there a
possibility of error ?” And I know
that the Chief Valuer, giving his
answers in clear and categorical
terms, said that, allowing for the
maximum degree of possibility of
error, we could make it Rs. 40 mil-
lion, on the basis of a thirty per cent.
error in his valuation. He however
said that that was only an outside
possibility. But he said, “I frankly
do not think even the valuation of
Rs. 30 million would be proved if the
oil companies were made to disclose
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the true value at which they had
acquired tue.r assets by an exami-
nawon of tneir buoks.” ‘Lhe book
values would appear in the books
tnemselves.

I do not think I will be disclosing a
Cabinet secret in telling you what tne
Chief Valuer said. But he certainly
said, “I would not be able under this
Act to justify or go before the tribunal
and say that this valuation which you
are putting upon it is covered by the
terms of your statement.” This Gov-
ernment did not even pretend to bring
it under the terms of the Act. This
Government says, “Let us driva a
coach into the statute itself. Why do
we want a statute ? We have already
kicked the statute in the teeth by
paying the money out.”

The Constitution talks about the
manner of drawing money out of the
Consolidated Fund. The Exchange
Control tells us about the procedure
of drawing foreign exchange out of
the Central Bank of Ceylon. All these
statutes are ignored. An agreement is
made notwithstanding anything in
any other law. His Master’s Voice, the
voice of capitalism reflected in this
type of agreement, is made to prevail
by the kind of sordid law which we
are now discussing here in this House.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, on what
basis, I ask you, can anybody justify
or pretend to justify this ? Why does
the Hon. Minister of State say, “I am
seeking to justify this law on the
basis that you did exactly that.”
Surely no one can argue that we did
exactly this. Had we done it, we too
would have stood in the dock in the
magistrate’s court, and very able law-
vers,—there are Queen’s Counsel in
plenty with their silken voices—
would have been able to indict us and
to prosecute us. We would perhaps
have had to resort to the same sort of
tricks as the Hon. Minister of State
in getting the Attorney-General to
interfere under Section 199 of the
Criminal Procedura Code and to exer-
cise his powers by invading the very
independence of the Attorney-Gene-
ral enshrined therein, as against tha
ministerial acts of the Minister of
Justice.
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We have been reauced to this by
trying to preserve d2mocracy for the
Nauonal Government., li this is what
democracy means, if this statute is to
be taken as an index, then, Parlia-
ment may well not meet. If we were
tu conslaer wnat exacily Parliament
has done from March 22nd onwards,
or what Parliament is trying to do,
Parliament does not seem to be neces-
sary for tha United National Party
and for this National Government. In
contrast, I remember, when we were
the Government, we used to sit day
after day, night after night, and every
single Member of this House had
every opportunity to talk as much as
he pleased, and HANSARD bears elo-
quent testimony, even by its very
size, in regard to what we had to say.
I 'think our record of legislative acti-
vity, particularly in the first years of
our Government, stands without
parallel in the history of this Legis-
lature. But so far as this Government
is concerned, even in its first year,
the machine seems to have run down
before it has even gained momentum.
It is a tragady. We ourselves want to
see a Government elected by the
people—by the free vote of the people,
as we say—getting down to a job of
work.

On paper, according to the news-
papers, we are overflowing with milk
and honey. Foreign countries have
come to our rescue. The hon. Parlia-
mentary Secratary to the Minister of
Industries and Fisheries will tell us,
“We have all the foreign aid in the
world.” If you total up all the amounts
which, the newspapers say, have be2n
promised, I think it will run into over
six ficures. But do the ordinary people
see it in practical terms ? We should
be ov-rflowing with imports. The res-
trictions should be off. We should be
having any amount of consumer goods
available. Prices should have come
down. What has happened instead ?
The Petroleum Corporation is there,
but n->ver before have Members of
Parliament belnnoing to the Gov-orn-
ment party rushed round to the office
of the Minister of Natinn~lized Ser-
vices to trv and ensure that their
areas get kerosene carts. Thatdstin the
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newspapers. That is the sordid story
today under the National Govera-
ment—any amount of money, foreign
aid in plenty, but the price of foreign
aid ? We have mortgaged our country.
We have handed over a sum of money
for which there is absolutely no
defence in the law.

What we are now called upon to
do is not to amend our laws but to
forgive the Government for a trans-
gression of the law and to try and
make it legal after the event. I for
one shall oppose this law, not because
I say that the amount of compensation
is excessive by indulging in some kind
of arithmetical or mathematical gym-
nastics: I am not going to argue that
the compensation was ever intended
to be liable to foreign exchange tax
and ‘the other taxes. The principles in
the Act were not declared to be sub-
ject to any special taxes. They may
or may not be—it is a matter of inter-
pretation. But if the oil companies had
stood by the words of tha statute, by
the will of this House, by the will of
the United National Party included
when it was in the Opposition, cer-
tainly I for one will say that I am not
going to raise any argument according
to the amount of liability which could
be calculated by imposing tax upon
tax upon the amount of comp>nsation.
I certainly think that it was the inten-
tion of this House that compensation
should be paid. I say that 'that com-
pensation, according to the basis of
valuation on such information as we
had, would not have exceeded Rs. 30
million ; or, as the Chief Valu-r put
it, at the very highest, notionally, on
the extreme possibilities of error, it
would not have exceeded Rs. 40
million.

I say 'that this Governm>nt has not
followed that. I do not hold the indict-
ment against them in regard to a few
millions of rupees one way or the
other, if they could justify it. but I
definitely state that 'the prineinla
stated in the preamble to this Rill ig
mere evewash. It is evewach for the
reason that ev-n the Hon. Minicter of
Statesicannot honestly tell us that
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every single item in that schedule has
been 1temised and valued or that an
attempt has been made to assess tne
fair market vaiue of each item. They
have merely said, “ Wz will take over
not merely the assets vested already,
but even the kerosene carts through-
out the Island that were never vested.
We will take over all the rubbish that
the oil companies have in Ceylon
which they do not want. We agree to
say ‘let us take it for granted’ so as
to be an example to other countries
in case they want to nationalize oil.
Let us show them that the oil com-
panies have fought for it and have
vindicated the right to get for them-
selves fair market valuz as a principle
of compensation. ”

Nothing of the sort! What they did
was to enter into a shabby deal. They
agreed to leave the Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation Act on one side. They
agreed to shelve the will of the peoplz
of this country, to forget the very
interests who voted them into power
not so long ago—seven months ago.
In sa2ven short months you have for-
gotten the people, forgotten their
legislative authority, forgotten their
sovereignty, and begun to talk to
yourselves in a new languags, in a
now vocabulary ; “I am the Govern-
ment, we are the State, we carry this
country forward”. Members of Par-
liament will have to gn crawling to
the Petroleum Corporation for kero-
sene carts, and that is all we g>t.

I shall not speak any longer
because 1 promised faithfully to
conclude my speech at 6 o’clock in
order to give the Minister of State
one full hour for his reply.

In conclusion, I should like to
state that when illegalities are done,
when we are told to ignore Acts of
Parliament, when we are called
upon to throw aside our legislative
process, wa cannot take that view.
We cannot agree to adopting the
standard of doing ourselves dis-
honour in this House. We must
stand uvn for our own legislative
sovereignty and authoritv and.
therofare T eall upbon all sections of

Bewldm @58 @edACes
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the future your Government does
not act agaiust tue law, to ensure
tnat your Govern.nent consu.ts
Parliament beiore it acts in tue
teeth of the law and to ensure that
it leaves tne Attorney-seneral alone
without seeking to use him as their
stooge to protect themselves from
the consequences of their own -
dishonourabie conduct.

& . 6

A& & ¢l. LwdEAM

(Qaerrey Cgg. yr. eguieun gar)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

Mr. Deputy Cnairman, the hon.
Member ior Dompe (Mr. F. R. Dias
Bandaranaike) nas tried to draw a
rel herring across the path of this
Debate. I do not intend to enter
into any prolonged discussion about
the sovereignty of Pariiament and

the  necessity for introducing
retrospective legislation.
In fact, every day, in every

Parliament, retrospective legislation
is introduced. All your Inland
Revenue Bills are retrospective
legislation to change the tax laws.
Revenue Protection Acts and Orders
are retrospective legislation. It is
certain forms of retrospective legis-
lation that are bad. Otherwis2, no
nation could possibly go to war
without a debate in Parliament. The
British went to war twice and
Parliament sanctioned the action of
the Government after the first shots
had been fired. Peace treaties and
commercial treaties are always
signed long before Parliament dis-
cussas the treaties. It is never
against the law.

This was the one occasion on
which we hadl to come to some
agreement before consulting Parlia-
ment. We wish we were able to
consult Parliament b=fore or during
the discussions, but it was not ros-
sible to do so without knowing the
amount for which we had to sottle
this disnute. The first thing every
hon. Member eould have wvalidly
asked was. “ What is the use of
coming to the House without telling
us what you are going to pav 2ni

this House at least to ensurethatiin-nathemode and manner of payment? ”
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Therefore, as I said, I do not intend
to depate today tae queston of
retrospactive  legislation and it
wou.d not be necessary tor tne hon.
Member for Dompe to fignt us, as he
said, “man to man in the sireets
ani on tne beacues”. It would not
be necessary for him, either, to fight
till the last woman in his party is
dead !

The second question was about
the Attorney-General intervening in
the prosecution against the Min.ster
of Nationalized Services. That is a
procelure which the law aliows and
it was in a case filed against tne
Government of which he was a
Member that the Attorney-General
intervened and sought to enter a
nolle prosequi. Tne  magistrate
refused, appeal was taken and the
appeal court gave a ruling that in
such a case the Government has the
right to request the Attorney-
General to intervene and enter a
nolle prosequi. Our Minister is
depending on that decision and I
hope it will be successful.

This has been a very interesting
Debate and it has revolved round
certain fundamental points: firstly,
whether compensation should be
paid at all to the oil companies
whose properties were taken over
by the State; secondly, the mode
and manner of the determination of
the compensation ; thirdly, how the
compensation should be paid; and
fourthly, the question of what
legislation was necessary.

With regard +to the
whether compensation should be
paid or not, only two dissident
voices were heard in this House, the
hon. Member for Walapane
(Mr. T. B. M. Herath) and the hon.
Member for Habaraduwa (Mr. Prins
Gunasekera), who said that no com-
pensation should be paid. But T do
not think it is necessary to discuss
this todav because all parties are
acreed, all Governments aoree ani
all thnse who form governments
agree that when vou take over the
provertv of somebodv, particular'y
when it 1is a foreion interest,

question

compensation has to beDBﬁié@l by Noolaham sati@non The
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Every country that I know of in
the world has paid compensation
when tuey nationalized the propar-
ties of foreisn interests. The Soviet
Union under Leain paid compensa-
tion to Canada for the nationaliza-
tion of ecertain nickel mines;
Rumania paid compensation to tne
U. S. A. when she nationalized
petrol companies; Indonesia and
Burma recently paid compensation
or bought out the interests of these
very same companies when they
nationalized their interests; Ezypt
or the U. A. R. paid or agreed to pay
compensation when the Suez Canal

was nationalized. In the Inilian
Constitution  there is  specific
provision—

g. &n, 6.8

sy Bowlds BB RNS
(@pssallar GOr& sysGrrearr oo
&ar )
(Mr. Deputy Chairman of Committees)
Order, please ! The Hon. Speaker
will now take the Chair.

TIPGES  mlmu
gerumensy 9w
geiuzniied Te.

Bowidn wwmLBn®
BewnY, DANIARNS:

s s@lnG Gueseier ou &lonset et
sonr eeBrneend felmia FasGa,  FUTBIWER
SIUTEET & evenlD G ML @) &G,

Whereupon MR. DepPUTY-CHAIRMAN

or CommiITTEES left the Chair, and
MR. SPEAKER took the Chair.

a& o&. . $wkDZAn

(Qsorrey Ggg.’hcgbr?. eQuIGUIT e )

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

In the Indian Constitution there is
specific provision for the payment of
compensation when property is
nationalized. Therefore, one nesd
not debate the issue whether comn-
pensation should be paid to the
companies whose interests were

taken over by the State in this
particular case.

The next question is, how should
one assess that comvensation ? The
Ceylon Petrnleum Corporation Act
No. 28 of 1961, lavs down the nroce-,-
dure for the assessment of comnen-

procedure is rather
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elaborate. The previous Govern-
ment constituted the tribunal and
under that Bill the tribunal has to
look into various matters. I need
not go into all the matters except to
say that the whole procedure is very
involved. After the tribunal has
come to a decision it makes an
award under Section 51, and it is
only according to such an award
made by the compensation tribunal
that compensation can be paid.
There is no other way. The com-
pensation that is so awarded should
be paid by the corporation, not by the
Consolidated Fund. Somebody made
a point that the momey should be
paid from the Consolidated Fund.
It has to be paid by the corporation.
The mode and manner of payment
of the compensation shall be deter-
mined by the Minister in consultation
with the Minister of Finance. There-
fore, what is the special function of
the tribunal under the Act ? It is to
decide on the quantum, and the
procedure is laid down to decide on
the quantum. The corporation pays
the amount. The Minister decides
the mode and the manner of
payment.

Before this tribunal was consti-
tuted, the previous Government had
negotiations with the petroleum com-
panies in December-January 1962.
Why they should have done so when
the Act provided for the setting up
of a tribunal, I do not know. In Feb-
ruary 1963, the American Govern-
ment decided under their laws to
stop aid to Ceylon. The previous
Government then again re-opened
the negotiations, but failed, and aid
was stopped. In July 1963, again
negotiations were re-opened with the
petroleum companies but no deci-
sions were arrived at.

I need not go into the details of the
documents and the other matters

concerning those negotiations,
because it was admitted by all
parties that they did negotiate

directly with the petroleum com-
panies, and with the agents of the
petroleum companies, to decide out-
side the valuation of the tribunal as

Bewidw @535 SeFDCw
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to what money should be paid by
way of compensation. I will only
come to the last discussion between
the Finance Minister, the hon. Mem-
ber for Yatiyantota, and the petro-
leum companies, in Ceylon and in
London. The Finance Minister in
the Coalition Government admitted
that he met the petroleum company
agents in London and discussed with
them the question of settling the oil
dispute. Why did he do that? He
gave a very valid reason. I would
like to cite his actual words because
in this long Debate, very often Mem-
bers are not present when speeches
are made. In the HaNsArRD of
September 1965, at column 56,
Dr. N. M. Perera said,

“I am prepared to admit, therefore,
that the principle of compensation does
not arise now, and we may not go over
that question again, whatever feelings
we may have had at that time. This
question was raised by me in the course
of the Debate, but taking all things into
consideration, I think we need not go
over that ground again. Suffice for our
purpose, therefore, to start on the
premise that we agreed to compensation,
that this House agreed to compensation,
and even those who were not so disposed
might say, ‘Yes, we will accept that

position.’
Then, two questions arise : (1) Was
the quantum of compensation that has

Dow been agreed upon reasonable and in
the best interests of this country ?
(2) Was the manner in which that
quantum has been determined in the best
interests of this country ? That also is
very relevant and very important from
the point of view of the interests of the
couniry. I want to take up both those
matters. ”

Then, again at column 80, he said :

“More than that, I must confess, as the
Hon. Minister of State pointed out, I had
another problem to face as Minister of
Finance: the position of our foreign
exchange was not at all satisfactory.
That we cannot ignore. And we had to
consider how best to meet the situation.

The position was made worse as a
result of the unmentioned hostility shown
to us. This was not openly s*ated.
Apart from the attitude adopted on the
Hickenlooper Amendment in terms of
which  America cut off aid in their
refusal generally or the refusal of most
Powers to consider any question of aid
or agreement, certainly there is not the
slightest doubt that ~ this factor, the
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general influence of American bankers,
was being felt. I am not trying to deny
that fact. These are the factors that
weighed with me. I want to be quite
honest and fair by this House; I do not
want to hide facts. These are the
factors that weighed with me, when I
became Minister of Finance, in consider-
ing whether I should continue these

negotiations or not, ”

I would like the hon. Member for
Dompe (Mr. F. R. Dias Bandara-
naike) to listen to these words
because when the hon. Member for
Yatiyantota (Dr. N. M. Perera) was
speaking he was not here.

ofef. @l Dued AeTndsny O,
(Bm. eris. . Lwew v rrpruds)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

I was here.

o& 8. @8, BwedBR

(Qserrey Co. yi. spweur gar)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

He was not here in this House. He
was in this world.

CBCE QY BB .

(8@ Qagarpper guBian)
(Mr. Shelton Jayasinghe)
He is not listening.

ad o&. @d. £wuddAm

(Qsorras Cag. Y. spweur ger)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

So, over and over, in the next
several columns, he keeps on trying
to explain why he met Mr. Byrnell,
why he met Lord Shawecross, why he
went to the seven storeyed Shell
building in London, why he had
lunch, all because the foreign ex-
change situation was most unsatis-
factory and the question of aid was
being held out. We had to get aid.
We had to settle this problem. Other-
wise, as Finance Minister, the hon.
Member for Yatiyantota could not
carry on the affairs of this nation.

As I have said before, he was the
only Finance Minister in the S.L.F.P.
Government who realized the diffi-
cult financial and monetary situation
we were in, how we could get out
of it, and how necessaryiitewasito

Ry endas 7
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obtain foreign aid. He was not a bit
averse in saying it publicly, in this
House and in the Throne Speech
Debate, that we must get foreign aid.
It was to get foreign aid that he
threw aside your Petroleum Act ; he
tore up the tribunal proceedings ; he
discussed with the hated Americans
and the English, and agreed upon the
minimum figure of Rs. 45 million. It
was almost Rs. 12 million more than
the valuation of your valuator.

ofed. @&, e deddndsncs e,
(8. eris. yr. Luiew LIGRTL_IT T 5T a1 )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

But it did not end up in the talk.

oG o6& @d. LwudBam

(Qserrey Caop. . eyweur ser)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

He went higher than that. He went
possibly up to Rs. 474 million. We
understood that he was prepared,
with Cabinet approval, to go up to
Rs. 50 million. It does not matter.
There is no record of that. We cer-
tainly know that he was prepared to
go up to Rs. 45 million, with interest
at 3 per cent. from the day of vest-
ing, that is, from 1961 to 1965, which
would total Rs. 50 million.

In other words, those companies, at
the lunch, had agreed to Rs. 45 mil-
lion with interest at 3 per cent., and
the whole sum came to Rs. 50 million
which your Coalition Government
would have had to pay as
compensation.

I am now dealing only with the
quantum—never mind, how you are
going to settle it ; how you are going
to pay it—whether you are going to
ask your tribunal to be stooges and
accept Rs. 50 million. I will deal
with that later.

The quantum the last Finance Min-
ister of your Government was pre-
pared to pay to the oil companies was
Rs. 50 million, that is, Rs. 45 million
plus interest at 3 per cent. I have not
heardianybody saying that they were
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‘not going to pay this 3 per cent. inte-
rest on Rs. 40 million, which will
total up to Rs. 50 million. I do not
hear any protests. I do not hear any
dissent. 1 do not hear anybody say-
ing that that is not correct.

eePemnde V. 9. FPHVE»
(QisLi erow. @. Hsriofms)
(Dr. S. A. Wickremasinghe)
Subject to facts.

ad €3, w8, Luiadm

(Osarras Geg. 2y7. suiaurser)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

One by one I will deal with them.
When I deal with them, you will not
interrupt.

Rs. 50 million, which is Rs. 45 mil-
lion plus interest at 3 per cent. from
1961 to 1965, is the quantum the hon.
Dr. N. M. Perera, the hater of the
Americans, the hater of the Shell
Company, the hater of capitalism, the
hater of the oil companies, was pre-
pared to recommend to the Cabinet
to pay. It may have been a little
more than that but we say that it
was Rs. 50 million.

We have agreed to pay Rs. 55 mil-
lion. It is only Rs. 5 million more
that we are paying. I agree. Was
all this Debate for Rs. 5 million ?

Bfed’. 8. Desed et and s Q.
(8. eris. Q. Lwev LSTLTTFTU&ES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Get Sugathadasa out of the dock.

aé &, gid. eI

(Qzerres Ceg. . Qweui ger)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

Now we come to the next point as
to how this money is to be paid. I do
not know whether hon. Members
believed the arguments that were
adduced here. But, in regard to the
fisure of Rs. 45 million and the
interest thereon that we arrived at,
or in regard to the figure of Rs. 40
million that the pure, undiluted
S.L.F.P. arrived at, or the figure of
Rs. 50 million that the S.L.F.P.

Bewldm @5 LeHRCes
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I do not know whether you were
going to say, “Now, now, we have
settied on tnis figure; the tribunal is
doing nothing ; come along, you good
boys, wiil you put in this figure in
your award?” I do not know how
you were going to bring that under
the authority of the tribunal. It
really is beyond my ingenuity and
imag.nation. I do not know whether
the hon. Member for Dompe can find
some method of doing it, without
ad hoc legislation, without repeal-
ing one section or another of the
Petroleum Corporation Act of 1961. I
really do not know how you were
going to put in that Rs. 45 million or
that Rs. 50 million.

ofes. . Vaed TN SNy e

(B, eTil. QYF. Ltiew LIGHTL T TGS )

(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Come before Parliament before we
pay.

od &, 8. S

(Cserrar Geg. 4. gmmr}ﬂ;&)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

Come before Parliament merely
to make a statement or to amend
the Act ?

ofed’. enl. Ded DTN dNcIy O
(Bm. erir. Y. Lwew LUSTLITFrusEsS)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)
Come to Parliament.

A &, . Hu2dm
(Oserrar Ge. oyf. eguieur ser)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

We come to Parliament every
day. But you must come with a
Bill. Were you coming with a Bill ?
[Interruption.]

ofd. @&, dwed Aeddnmbrncm D
(Bm. erih. sy, Lwey LT rrprL&Es)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

That is why you are in the dock.

ag o ¢, Bwu2iam

(Qserrer Ceg. oyf. equieur sar)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

You cannot just come to Parlia-
ment and say, “We are paying.”
How can you come and say, “ We are
paying” ? How are you going to pay

diluted with the Marxists arrived-atooawhennthere is a tribunal sitting ?
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How are you going to pay the
Rs. 50 m.llion, or the Rs. 45 million ?

I have not got an answer.

2f. @d. Vaed dedMdrnw .
(Bm. el gyi. Lwen uarLrTpruss)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

First get your Minister out of the
dock.

& 63, @b, LA
(Qserras Csg. . gueud sar)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

You were prepared to amend the
Act.

ofef. 8. Deed ATTA SNy Den.
(8. eri. QY. Lwew LSTLTTFTLES)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)
Certainly not.

- ad o8 @d. LwddAxn
(Qserray Cgg. . sguiaui ger)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)
I have the proposed amendment.

a& €Y el HwIn®

(Osorrey QurenrGL s syuweflérin)

(The Hon. Montague Jayewickreme)
Now the cat is out of the bag.

ad; 8. 8. B2
(Oserras Gog. yi. squieur ser)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

I will read the proposed amend-
ment if you want.

The amendment was merely to ask
the tr.bunal to accept the figure. The
amendment may have taken this
form:

“ Nothwithstanding anything contained
above, if the parties to the dispute have
reached agreement as to the amount of
compensation for the totality of the
assets vested and such agreement had
been reduced to writing, the tribunal
shall make an award in terms of such
agreement.”’

No negotiated settlement can be
valid without an amendment to the
Act. That is obvious. It is obvious
to the simplest mind; it must be
more obvious to the legabimind.

DS edad 7
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But we were faced with this
situation. When our Government
assumed office and we had negotia-
tions with the petrol companies, the
whole question of the validity of the
tibunal was before the courts. It is
still before the courts, I think; I do
not know. An order had been made
by the Supreme Court to say that
because this tribunal was dealing
with the rights of individual pro-
perty, the tribunal should have been
nominated or selected by the Judicial
Service Commission. This point
was taken after the well-known
Ranasinghe case where the Privy
Council decided that the members of
bribery tribunals cannot be selected
except by the Judicial Service Com-
mission.

There is a similar point now being
argued, namely, that presidents of
industrial  tribunals should be
selected only by the Judicial Service
Commission.

Well, this point was taken in the
case of the compensation tribunal
regarding the oil companies. There-
fore, the whole question of the
validity and the legality of the
tribunal, which was going to award
the compensation, was before the
Supreme Court,

We negotiated with the petroleum
companies as did your Government,
as did the then Minister of Finance,
Dr. N. M. Perera. We came to a lump
sum settlement as did your Govern-
ment, as did the then Minister of
Finance, Dr. N. M. Perera. We came
to a settlement of Rs. 5 million more
than your Government was prevared
to pay, as was discussed by Dr. N.
M. Perera; Rs. 5 million more than
the official amount you were prepared
to go up to.

Having come to that settlement, we
wondered how we could implement
it. We thought of the tribunal, and
whether we could not go before it.
After all, officials who worked for
your Ministers work for us. They
placed all these files before s,
Nothing was hidden. They are very
loyal. They are not in America ; they
dormobrchange with the Government.
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All your documents, minutes, memo-
randa, proposals, are here. We dis-
cussed: Are we to go before the
tribunal ? Are we to move this
amendment that you thought of
moving ? It was suggested by the
oil companies themselves. How are
we going to pay this money ? We
wanted to do it legally. Then we
thought we could not go before the
tribunal because the question of the
tribunal’s legality was before the
Supreme Court. Then, you might say :
Why cannot they withdraw that case ?
They can witdraw ; we can withdraw.
But some outsider can go and file a
case, as has been filed against the
Minister of Nationalized Services.
Some patriotic, law-abiding citizen
might take it into his head to retain
Dr. Colvin R. de Silva and to go to
court, and say : “This is all wrong ;
this tribunal is illegal ; you have to
get an award.” And the whole pro-
cedure would start again.

So, we thought it would be far bet-
ter, instead of going before a tribunal
which has nothing to do with the
settlement, a tribunal which might be
illegal, for us to come and tell the
House : We have settled it at Rs. 5
million more than you were prepared
to pay: let us amend the law and
validate it. That is why we thought of
coming to this House.

Then we come to the amount, that
is Rs. 5 million more than what Dr.
N. M. Perera was prepared to pay.
Various speakers asked me various
questions : Was the market value in
this ? Was the fair market value in
this ? Was the open market value
in this ? Was the value of the assets
included in this ? I like to tell you,
quite frankly, I do not know. I am
not a businessman. I do not own
mills. T am not a wvaluator—
[Interruption]. I have not got stocks.
I am not even a penniless lawyer !

eDM®OsY ch.

(8. Qaerwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

You valued the Chinese rotary
press.
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(Qserren Cgg. . sgueur ger)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

I do not know what the value of
the petroleum company assets are.

S5y Bcs.

(Bm. Qserwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

But you knew the value of the
rotary press!

aé 8. @d. &x2dx

(Qserrer Cog. . spuenrsar)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

All T knew was that I agreed with
the Minister of Finance in the Coali-
tion Government that we had to
settle this very quickly. We were
determined to settle it. So we asked
the oil companies to negotiate with
us. I did not negotiate alone. I can
tell you, because the hon. Member
for Panadura (Mr. Leslie Goonewar-
dena), said I met these officials
of the petroleum companies alone,
and my brother was the lawyer for
the petroleum companies. I did not
meet them alone. I met them always
with the officials. The Prime Minister
and I met them, and the Prime
Minister was informed that Dr. N.
M. Perera was prepared to go up to
Rs. 50 million. We told the oil com-
pany representatives: We will pay
you Rs. 55 million. We did not budge
from that. They said they wanted
Rs. 70 million. Then they came down
to Rs. 60 million. We said: Not 70
million, not 60 million, not 59 million,
not 58 million, not 57 million, not 56
million, not even 55% million ; Rs. 55
million we will pay, nothing more.
Either we go to some international
court.—[Interruption]. Shut wup!
There is a time to deal with rats. We
are.dealing with an important matter.
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(The Hon. I. M. R. A. Iriyagolle—
Minister of Education and Cultural
Affairs)

You are insulting rats!

& e 8. LwudBn
(Qaorray Ca. gy QWG G )
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

I think hon. Members would like
to hear why we came to this decision,
and the manner in which we came to
this decision.—[Interruption]. I have
got half and hour to go, and I do not
want to be interrupted.

—

We told the petroleum companies
the amount that we want to pay.
You were prepared to go up to Rs. 50
million. We wanted to settle it, but
we wanted to preserve our self-
respect. We are no more frightened—
I like to tell the hon. Member for
Dompe and the hon. fair Leader of
the Opposition—we are no more
frightened of America than you are.
We are not frightened of America,
China, Russia or the whole damned
lot together ! Because we know that
when we have to fight them we have
you also with us, as we would
have been with you if you
wanted to fight them. But this
question has to be settled. Whether
it be to America or Russia or
India, if compensation has to be paid,
as you are all agreed, and if the
difference was only Rs. 5 million, we
thought we would pay it, finish it and
go on to the next stage of getting aid.
As the Prime Minister told us, we
said that we would pay Rs. 55 million
and not a cent more. If they did not
accept it we would not have had
negotiations, we would not have paid
compensation and we might have
gone to the World Bank or some inter-
national organization. We were
making preparations for that. We
had written to our representatives to
take this matter before some world
organization. There is some world
organization set up—hon.” Nembers
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opposite must know about it—to deal
with questions of compensation.

S. 8. 398 Q. (WOwEELHEG)
(8. £. 9. sufbs—a _ PewCurer)
(Mr, T. B. Subasinghe—Katugampola)
The International Court.

ad e&, §d. gadE»

(Ceerrey Ggg. . sgweur ser)

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

We meant to do that. Possibly we
would not have got aid, but they may
have considered that action to
be “meaningful steps”. The tribu-
nal was out of the question because
it was illegal. We had to stop going
to the tribunal. Whatever settle-
ment was arrived at before the tribu-
nal would have been held illegal,
possibly by a court or the Privy
Council. So we were prepared to go
to the world court, but we were not
going to pay one alukkala more than
Rs. 55 million. That was the firm
decision we took, and we stood by
our guns. I am very proud that we
took up that position. I have not
mentioned it up to date. We told
those companies that we were not
going beyond Rs. 55 million.

We now come to the last point,
taxation. This was the point all of
them were making. They even
went into astronomical figures to
show what the taxation would have
been. Some hon. Members went up
to Rs. 88 million, some up to Rs. 90
million and some went even up to
Rs. 100 million. They said that if
you did not exempt this compensa-
tion from taxes it would have been
Rs. 100 million. I would like to say,
and I want to prove it from the books,
that there is not one cent taxation
due. We need not have that clause
mentioning exemption from taxation,
It was done out of an abundance of
caution—as the hon. Member for
Dompe cited a Latin phrase, ex
abundantia cautela out of an abund-
ance of caution we go step by step.

Of. @&, Desed DL Db mcsey ¢,
(r@@ 6T, DT L_tiow ueaérgrrr‘gsrrwéa)
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)
TiyLatin, but do not misquote.
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(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

First of all we will take the ex-
change tax. That was a matter on
which my hon. Colleague from
Colombo South (Mr. Bernard Soysa),
and the hon. Member from Panadura
waxed eloquent. “The exchange
tax has to be paid: that exchange
tax was Rs. 25 to Rs. 30 million, add
that on to the Rs. 55 million, it comes
to nearly Rs. 100 million ; you have
sold this country for Rs. 50 million,
Rs. 100 million”, and so on. They
have not looked at the laws. Why
do they not open these books and
look at them ? Who introduced
Finance Act No. 11 of 1963 ? Look at
Ak

“ PART II

Imposition, Levy
the Exchange Tax.—

That tax can be levied only by a
gazette notification.

28—On or after the appointed date,
every sale of foreign currency in
Ceylon by a competent authority to
any person for any taxable purpose
shall be liable to the imposition,
levy and payment of the exchange
tax.

29, (1) The Minister may, from time to
time, by Order impose and levy
atex . sl on every sale of
foreign curency in Ceylon by a
competent authority to any per-
son for any such taxable purposes
as shall be specified in the
Order. The Minister may, from
time to time, by a like Order
increase or reduce the rate of
such tax on any such sale.”

and Recovery of

It is done by a gazette order. Now
let us look at the gazette order
appearing in Gazette No. 13,915 of
Friday, January 10, 1964. It deals with
the various transactions that are sub-
ject to the exchange tax—certain
types of travel abroad, certain
types of maintenance abroad, transfer
of assets and so on. The schedule
says :

“sale of foreign curency for the
transfer of assets abroad ” means a sale
of foreign currency to any individual
who is not a citizen of Cevlon, or to anvy

other person on behalf of such individual,
whether prior to or at the time of or
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individual from Ceylon, for the purpose
oi enapling all or any part of the capital
assets of such individual in Ceylon to be
transferred to a foreign country.”

To an individual, not a company.
Only an individual who transfers
assets abroad is liable to the foreign
exchange tax, not a company. The
Opposition is silent. Is that right or is
it wrong ? These are three companies
seeking to transfer thair assets
abroad, and this is compensation.
They are not liable to this tax. You
could have made them liable ; you did
not. This is your law, not our law.
We have repealed this law. But the
laws which prevailed at the time the
compensation was settled by us and
at the time you created the tribunals
did not make the assets of the com-
panies liable to the foreign exchange
tax. So that is out of the way.

Then we come to wealth tax.
Wealth tax is not leviable on the
assets of foreign companies. I have
come ready with all the books ; you
can see them; I will cite them:
Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act,
No. 12 of 1964. The wealth tax is not
leviable on the assets of foreign com-
panies. Section 13 says:

s Rates of Wealth Tax...

For a person other than a chari-
table institution or a non-resident
company having immovable pro-
perty in Ceylon—"

Non-resident companies are not
liable to pay a wealth tax. I have dis-
posed of two taxes, the foreign ex-
change tax and the wealth tax. In-
come tax is not payable on compan-
sation as far as profits are concerned
except possibly on the interest. I
admit that interest that has to be paid
on the compensation will bear
interest, but we have exempted that.
If you like you can add that up to the
Rs. 55 million, but there are no other
profits. It is a lump sum payment.
Therefore, income tax is not payable
on the other taxes that the last
Government brought—the business
profits tax, sales tax, business regis-
tration tax, and the visa tax, and so
on. Not one of those taxes has to be

subsequent to the departure dof \siuehn Paidon this compensation. We can

noolaham.org | aavanaham.org


http://www.noolahamfoundation.org/
http://www.noolaham.org/wiki/index.php/%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%81%E0%AE%A4%E0%AE%B1%E0%AF%8D_%E0%AE%AA%E0%AE%95%E0%AF%8D%E0%AE%95%E0%AE%AE%E0%AF%8D
http://aavanaham.org/

1419
Comy DY enE 2378 (8ed R BEwO® &18)
ey ewPEum

have only but one tax, the capital
gains tax. Now, the capital gains tax,
if it is payable becomes much less
when all the other taxes are taken
away. The hon. Member for Panadura
(Mr. Leslie Goonewardene) said that
the capital gains tax is payable on
the Rs. 55 million, plus foreign ex-
change tax ; so did the hon. Member
for Colombo South (Mr. Bernard
Soysa), but I have told you that the
foreign exchange tax is not payable.
Therefore, it becomes less even if it
is payable.

I like to read this note with regard
to capital gains tax,

“Income tax is payvable only in respect
of carital gains arising on the take-over.
‘Capital gains’ is defined as ‘ the amount
received by the companies after deduct-
ing therefrom the value of thz assets on
1st April, 1957, or, if any asset was
acquired after 1st April, 1957, the cost
of acquisition of such asset, less any
expenses incurred in consequence of the
take-over’, The assets consist of very
little freehold land, lease land with
buildings thereon and machinery and
other equipment. They also consist of
the various petrol sheds and the oil
storage facilities.”

That is important because practi-
cally there is no immovable property
which these o0il companies own in
Ceylon. Their offices were in build-
ings rented ouf, and they had no
estates where the value of the land
appreciates. One acre of land in
Colombo in 1957 worth about two
lakhs of rupees is worth about four
lakhs of rupees today. That is capital
gains. They had no such property but
they had three to four hundred petrol
sheds plus equipment. To continue
reading from the note :

“The Government Valuer, in the first
instance, had determined the wvalue in

terms of the Act (which provided for a
value at the original cost less d2precia-
tion) at a sum of Rs. 33 million
approximately. This, therefore, is less
than the wvalue that is deductible in
arriving at capital gains, because in
respect of those assets which were held
or 1st April, 1957, the amount deductible
is the value on 1st April, 1957, and not
the original cost less depreciation. Then
as regards leasehold buildings, the value

will be NIL when the 1eas§g%§§£§£%§°§§§v‘
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that such properties depreciatz annually,
the value being measured by the balance
period before expiry of the lease.”

This is so stated in the Petroleum
Act. To continue reading :

“In such cases, the value at the time
cf take-over is consequently much lzss
than the value at 1st April, 1957. On the
basis of the Valuer’s report, the compen-
sation for vested property has been
provided at Rs. 33,000,000, which is set
out as follows (vide 1964 accounts of the
Corporation) :

Fixed assets—OQil Companies
Rs. 33,000,000
The compensation of Rs. 55 million

which is agreed was for these assets.
There are now three important conside-
ration that arise:

“First, is the value of Rs. 33 million
finally acceptable if the award was
determined in terms of the provisions of

the law, or would it bz increased ?
Even in the earlier negotiations by the
previous Government, the nee to

increase this valuation had already been
admitted.

Secondly, having regard to the wvalue
which they were entitled to deduct under
the Incomz Tax provisions, there is no
doubt that the above figure has to be
increased substantially, even at a reason-
able though arbitrary estimate, for
purposes of calculating capital gains.

Thirdly, the company would be
entitled to claim a further deduction
because one of the assets of any business
is its goodwill. In this case, no payment
is made for that goodwill. The company
1s entitled to claim the value of the
goodwill on 1st April 1957, as a total loss,
so that the full amount of the goodwill
as on 1lst April, 1957, is deductible in
addition to the value of the other assets
as determined under the Income Tax
provisions. The goodwill of the three
oil companies even on that date if taken
at a rouzh figure of two years of income,
1Is much more than Rs. 20 million, The
amount of_ capital gain when all this is
deducted is most probably nil, so that
capital gains tax would not have been
payable.”

I will read two more paragraphs :

“ Apart from these considerations, the
companies have waived interest of
rearly Rs. 5 million which covers the
interest that would have b-=en payable
for the three years. Interest would
however, have been subject to tax at the
rate applicable to non-resident compani=s
and in the case of one company at the
rate applicable to a resident company

i further tax when amounts
i%é%%ﬁo the parent company. e
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For the purpose of finally determining
the true position, we may therefore take
it that the assets of the oil companies
would have been valued at a minimum
of Rs. 40 million with a further provision
for about Rs. 20 million as goodwill, so
that Rs. 60 million has to be deducted
from the compensation in order to arrive
at any capital gains. Thus, the net
advantage on the present agreement is
that the waiver of interest has been
secured, an interest payable of nearly
Rs. 5 million.”

I would like, at this stage, to refer
to the last report of the Ceylon Pet-
roleum Corporation, the report for
1964. This was a production of the
previous Government though it came
out now. Look at the Balance Sheet
as at 31st December 1964. The esti-
mated value of vested property, the
original cost, is shown as Rs. 33 mil-
lion. In the next column, under
‘ Depreciation Reserve 31.12.64° the
figure is Rs. 6,116, 107.

In three to four years this Rs. 33
million has depreciated by Rs. 6 mil-
lion. In other words, the property
of the petroleum companies is a
depreciating asset. The Income Tax
provision makes provision for capital
gains and capital loss. I say there is
no capital gain in this case. There
is a capital loss. There is a capital
loss because the property is depre-
ciating. Petrol pumps depreciate,
their tanks depreciate, all their
movable property depreciates, in-
cluding bowsers. This happens every

year.

If they had ten acres of land in
Cinnamon Gardens or hundreds of
acres of land in Siyane Korale or the
building that the Chinese bought, as

the hon. Leader of the Opposition
said, for eight lakhs of rupees, such
property, I can understand, appre-
ciates in value. They are immovable
property. Every year they are
appreciating in value. The value in
1957, if it is one lakh of rupees, can
become five lakhs of rupees in 1964.

Bewldn @575 @e5ACw
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(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Why are you paying compensation
as though it has appreciated in
value ?

ad o8 &l dudiAm

(Qazerrey Cg3. s spuIeuT e )

(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

It is not so with regard to the pro-
perties which belong to the oil com-
panies. I have inquired from the
petroleum corporation what these
immovable properties are, and I am
told that they had a few pieces of
land which had no value. They had
no property in Cinnamon Gardens ;
they had no property in Fort. They
were living in rented offices. They
had between seven to eight hundred
petrol sheds, mostly on leased pro-
perty. All their oil installations
were on Government land or on
Railway land. The oil companies’
assets, apart from goodwill and
profits, were the petrol sheds.

That is just by the way. The tri-
bunal began to work. What did they
do ? The first thing they did was to
go and find out the value of the Alex-~
andra Place petrol shed. That was
to be the test. What was the value
of the building ? What was the value
of the land ? What was the value of
the pump ? Various things like that
were to be assessed, and that was
going to be the test for four hun-
dred sheds. But, unfortunately, legal
objections were taken, and the tri-
bunal ceased to exist. Therefore,
this balance sheet is perfectly right.
The Rs. 33 million is down by Rs. 6
million in three years. Therefore,
whatever the value was in 1957, that
is the test here for capital gains.

I do not think I need cite that sec-
tion. If you want me to do so, I
shall cite it. On second thoughts. let
us be absolutely thorough. I shall
cite that section also, so that there
will be no objection taken to what
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we are doing now. The Inland Re-
venue Act, No. 4 of 1963, Section 3

(4) (e), says:

“¢capital gain’,—
(i) with reference to capital gain of

any person arising from a change
of ownership of property, means,
subject to the provisions of sub-
section (3) of section 4, the
amount by which the value of
that property at the time when
such change of ownership occurs
exceeds its value at the time
when it was acquired by that
person. ”’

The time at which the property is
supposed to have been acquired is
1957. What was the value in 1957 ?
What was the value when compensa-
tion was paid ? I say that this is not
a question of capital gains but a ques-
tion of capital loss. Capital loss is
also mentioned in the Inland Revenue
Act, No. 4 of 1963. Section 3 (4) (f)
says :

“¢capital loss’,—

(i) with reference to capital loss of
any person arising from a change
of ownership of any property,
means, subject to the provisions
of sub-section (4) of section 4,
the amount by which the value
of that property at the time
when such change of ownership
occurs is less than its value at
the time when it was acquired
by that person.”

Therefore, this is a case of capital
loss, of depreciating assets. Accord-
ing to your own balance sheet, Rs. 33
million is less by Rs. 6 million in
three years. This is a question of
depreciating assets. Therefore, no
capital gain is apparent.

Rs. 55 million is what we say
should be paid, with interest from
the day of the signing of the agree-
ment. And we say that no taxes
under the law need be paid on this
Rs. 55 million. Therefore, the ques-
tion of exemption from taxation was
really not necessary, except with
regard to any payment with interest.

Look at it in another way. What
really is the value of these assets?
Hon. Members made a big point of
the fact that the Petroleum Corpora-
tion has made a profit of Rs, 30
million. I am very happyhanlset| as
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say that the Rs. 30 million includes
the rates at which you get petrol
from the Soviet Union, that is, at a
special discount. Let us say that this
was a good year for petrol. And
according to the Petroleum Corpora-
tion officials, let us say your profit
was Rs. 18 million, not Rs. 30 million.
Now, to get a profit of Rs. 18 million
net at 20 per cent interest, you need
an investment of Rs. 90 million. Hon.
Members can work it out. You need
an investment of Rs. 90 million to
get a net profit of Rs. 18 million at
a rate of dividend or profit of 20 per
cent. Therefore, to this country this
property is worth Rs. 90 million.
Does anybody doubt that ? They can
work it out.—[Interruption]. We
were not responsible for bringing
the oil companies here. I am very
happy they have gone. I thank you
for sending them away. Have we
paid too much for their going ?

As I said, Rs. 90 million is the
value of these assets. That is the
value if you are buying them, if some
merchant is buying them. Iam nota
merchant or trader. The only country
or people whom I have been able to
get the better of in a business trans-
action are the Chinese. So far the
Indians have not, the Pakistanis
have not, Russia has not, America
has not ; only Mr. J. R. Jayewardene
has, according to her. I do not know
whether she is correct, but she thinks
that the Chinese have paid more for
a house than they should have.

If you are getting Rs. 18 millicn,
the investment is Rs. 90 million.
Therefore, I have proved so much,
and no one can get up after me and
dispute it that the Rs. 55 million was
not an unfair amount to pay, on the
basis of what the Hon. Minister of
Finance in the previous Government
went up to, on the basis of what the
hon. Leader of the Opposition went
up to, for the aid that we hope to
get.

We are getting this year in foreign
aid, for commodity imports alone—
not for development purposes; out-
side all that—Rs. 250 million. The
agreements have practically all been
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signed and the Prime Minister will
make a statement. It «is for six
months—Rs. 250 million or $50
million. They calculate world figures
in dollars. We hope to get, secure,
argue, persuade and obtain next
year Rs. 500 million for commodities
outside negotiated aid for develop-
ment purposes. You yourselves have
negotiated. We want to carry on
those for some time; not that we
want foreign aid. Our Government
did not get one cent of foreign aid.
The American aid agreement was
signed by Mr. Bandaranaike and not
by us.

We are as proud of our indepen-
dence and our integrity as you are.
Not one of you on those Benches
negotiated our Independence Agree-
ment. It was those on these Benches
who did that. You said this is a fake
independence—those hon. Membeors
on that side. They said, “ This is not
freedom ”, but now they all say it is
freedom, and they are the greatest

supporters of the freedom that we

got !

Having got the freedom, why do
you want to give it away ? Why
should we give it away ? We do not
want to give it away. But if you
agree that compensation should be
paid, if you are prepared to go up
to Rs. 50 million, if you are prepared
to tear up the tribunal and bring a
small amendment, we are prepared
also to bring a small amendment and
pay the Rs. 5 million more that we
are prepared to pay. And for that,
as I said, we are getting, over and
above the other aid we get, Rs. 250
million this year for commodity pur-
chases and Rs. 500 million next
year ; this we hope to get for four
or five years more. I think again
you would admit that the man who
was able to get the better of the
Chinese is correct when he thinks
Rs. 5 million is not too much to pay
for Rs. 250 million in six months.
And if you were in our position, I
am sure the hon. Leader of the
Opposition would have done exactly
the same. Otherwise, you ara not a
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You say I am now going to pay
Rs. 5 million more, when we are
going to get so much of aid and the
whole question will be settled. We
want to get this millstone round our
neck out of the way, not that we
want to help the petroleum com-
panies. If we had our way, we
would not have paid them a cent.
Why should we pay them ? You are
quite right. They have made money
out of this country. They were
brought by the British ruler. Why
should we pay them ? If we could,
we would have kicked them into the
sea. You could not, we could not
both of us cannot. We have certain
international obligations to adhere to
and fulfil, and therefore we decided
to pay, and I think that although hon.
Members of the Opposition will vote
against this Bill they are convinced
that what we did was right and
correct.

@'y B@um 2

DO0EDC ¢PR “ume” A0 La ad
DAOMmERND SED sme wdém» ¢l

'@y ellGsa Glumm G-

Greselanng “ e ” sTeiQITEene @ Caih

Quierr sunpBIwWSH 2eurserTed UlisLentIL®s s

Ll g3,
Question put.

MR. SPEAKER, having collected the
Voices, declared that the “ Ayes” had it,

DY ®ca.

(8. Qsearwer)
(Mr. Keuneman)

Divide !

ofed. gl Aued AeTMdmnem S,
(B erdh gyi. twew USRTL_ T 5T LI&E )
(Mr. F. R. Dias Bandaranaike)

Divide, by name'!

Y 985" Ace @pn ve B» ¢ ¢&0—
sed  81; B&Law 47, @D —edg
CF = ge

soou Oftsam @ eriuns 81: e Bons 47T,

statesman ; you are just 8,£00l, 1, noolaham The Heuse divided : Ayes, 81 ; Noes, 47.
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he Bill was thereupon allocated by
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Bill accordingly read a Second time e B e Orde i ).

Mr. Speaker to Standing Committee “A”

DA BNRBDDH
(FUTBETLST YUl S6r )

{Mr. Speaker)

I appoint Mr. Shirley Corea,
Deputy Speaker, under Standing
Order No. 136, Chairman of

Standing Committee “ A ".

I have nominated the following
additional Members to serve on
Standing Committee “ A” for the
consideration of the Ceylon Petro-
leum (Foreign Claims) Compensation
Bill:

The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene
The Hon. M. D. Banda
Mr. D. Shelton Jayasinghe
Mr. Gamani Jayasuriya
. M. H. M. Naina Marikar
Mr. R. Premadasa
Mr. George Abeygoonasekera
. A. Amirthalingam
Mr. Leslie Goonewardene
Mr. Prins Gunasekera
. P. H. W. de Silva

Soeuh  scilr 57(2)

“a ags FrLL L gl

Sir Razik Fareed, O.B.E.
Dr. S. A. Wickremasinghe
Mr. T. B. Subasinghe

Mr. Bernard Soysa.

ad e @i, ¥u2idm
(Oserres GCog. Y. Qe ser)
(The Hon. J. R. Jayewardene)

What about the hon. Leader of the
Opposition ?

aé DEE o mnsnad
(Oserray 1t afl Ce@pruss)
(The Hon. Dudley Senanayake)

She may be already in the

Committee.

e foty e,

(Bm. sufns)
(Mr. Subasinghe)
I will stand down in her favour.
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o mde

I BNEWD D,

(Furprusi syanser)

(Mr. Speaker)

The hon. Member for Katugampola
has very kindly consented to stand
down in favour of the hon. Leader
of the Opposition. Therefore,
Mrs. Sirimavo R. D. Bandaranaike,
the hon. Leader of the Opposition,

too, will be a member of this
Standing Committee.

DC 959
@(a}ﬁmmtﬁz_{
ADJOURNMENT
Oy e ewldsn® wwmuldm Ba:

“'E T Ocw axl e o e —
[o4 & 8 ¢ 808.]

Bewlds @58 @eBDce

1438
2¢ 8@

“eou @UOUTLE 8 Hoass LB 7 g9/th
S51Gaoemr peopBafug. — [Qaercas &, 13,
g Hovaun.]

Resolved :

“That the House do now adjourn*.—
[Hon. C. P. de Silva.]

Ox'd e&ace 39 emmed
§. @, 712 O, 1965 @x'exvdad 8§ &»

Bmdig g o 10 2 ey o
o .

s seiug sou . u. 1.12 45 1965,
g&Gomut 8, Qaserefls® penio ap. u. 10
wedleis g8 PemadsiQuing.

Adjourned accordingly ai
7.12 pmM. until 10 AM. on
Friday, 8th October 1965.

*.
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